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NILKAMAL CRATES & BINS FZE 
Manager's Report 
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The manager submits his repmt and accounts fot• the year ended 31 March 2025. 

Results and dividend 

The profit for the yeat after tax amounted to AED 1,124,729/-. The directors have apptoved 
payment of interim dividend amounting to AED 1,000,000/~ for the year ended 31 March 
2025. 

Review of the business 

The establislunent is registered to .carry out activity of general trading I import and expmt. 
During the year, the establishment has mainly traded in various plastic crates, pallets, material 
handling equipment. racking systems, bins, hospitality products and related products. 

Events since the end of the year 

There were no significant events:. which have occulTed since the ye~:u·-end that materially affect 
the establishment 

Shareholder ami its interest 

The sole shareholder> at 31 March 2025 and its interest, as of that date, in the share capital of 
the establishment, was as follows: 

Nilkamal Limited 
(Represented by Mr. Saumil Mukund Mehta) 

Auditors 

!:tJ.IJl1:1.tMJ; 
i!J.CPJ:JWJ.:nJia!l 

India 

JYQ..,J)j§Jun:.e. AIW. 

l 185,000 

A resolution to re~appoint KSI Shah & Associates. as auditors and fix their remuneration 
will be put to th~:: board of directors at the annual general meeting. 

Mr. Saumil Mukund Mch'ta 
Manager 



l(SI SHAH & ASSOCIATES ·~J'< ·'•--<> ~ ot.___...,;:, IRI lJ"I <Jio Independent member Morison Global 

Chartered Accountants 
u~yw u~Ll..A 

1205 Westburry Commercial Tower, AIAbraj Street, Business Bay, P.O. Box: 71241, Oubai- U.A.E., Tel.: 04-3325657, www.ksisna.com 

Independent Auditors' Report to the Shareholder of 
NILKAMAL CRATES & BINS FZE 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 
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We have audited the accompanying financial statements of NILKAMAL CRATES & BINS FZE (the 
"establishment"), which comprises of the statement of financial position as at 3 I March 2025, and the 
statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year 
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies 
and explanatory notes. 

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects the financial position of the 
establislunent as of 31 March 2025 and its financial performance and its cash flows tor the year then ended 
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities 
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 
Statements section of our report We are independent of the Establishment in accordance with the 
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics tor Professional Accountants (IESBA 
Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements il). the 
UAE, and ,we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the 
IESBA Cod~. . . . 

We believe that the audit evidence we.have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion. 

Other Information 

Management is responsible for the other information. Other information comprises the manager;s report, 
which we obtained prior. to the date of this auditor's report. The other information does not include the 
11nancial statements and our auditor's report thereon. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any 
form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In coru1ection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial 
statements or, our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based 
on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor's 
report, we concluded that there is a material misstatement of the other information, we are required to report 
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Chnrged With Governance for the Financial Statements 
' . . 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financilll statemen,ts ,in. 
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management 
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement; .whether due to fraud or error. 

-DMCC.Ofnce: 44-F Alrnas Tower Juineirah Lakes Towers, Sheikh Zayed Road, Dubai, UAE. Tel.: +971 4 4541668, Fax: +971 4 454 1669 
' Associate Offices: Mumbai, New Delhi (INDIA) · · . 
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged Witlt Governance for the I?inancial Statements 
(continued) 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the establislunent's ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 
concem basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the establislunent or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic altemative but to do so. 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the establishment's financial reporting 
process. 

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the ll'inancial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that jnoludes our 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can (lrise 
from ±t·aud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economk decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also; 
" Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 

or error, design and perform audit,procedtlres responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resttlting fl:om frau)i is higher than for one resulting from error, a$ fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override ofintemai controL 

" Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the establishment's intemal control. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

" Conclude on the appropl"iateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the establishment's ability to continue as a going concem. 
If we conclude that a material uncertainty. exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's 
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date· of o~n· 
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the establislm1ent to cease to continue 
as a going concern. 

c. Evaluate the overall presentation; structure and content of the .financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a 
matmer that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with Those Charged with Govemanee regarding, among other matters, the plam1ed scope 
und timing of the amlit Rnrl Rie;nificant audit tindinp;s, including any significant deficiencies in intemal 
eontrol that we identify during our audit. 

·rr 1 Jkh OIIJ-v£-' ~~ 
For l~SI Shah & Associate/ 
Dubcn, U.A.E. 
Signed by: 
Sonal P. Shah (llegistration No: 123) 

5 May2025 



NILKAMAL CRATES & BINS FZE 

Statement of Financial Position 
At 31 Marcie 2025 

ASSETS 
Non-current assets 
Fixed assets 

Current assets 
Inventories 
Trade and other receivables 
Prepayments 
Cash and bank balances 

TOTAL ASSETS 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
Equity 
Share capital 
Statutory reserve 
Accumulated profits 
Total equity 

Non-current liability 
Staff end of service gratuity 

Current liabilities 
Trade and other payables 
Provision for income tax 

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

6 

7 
8 

9 

10 
11 

12 
21 

2025 
t1Ell 

172,916 

3,385,417 
2,945,114 

118,668 
5,259,835 

11.709,034 

185,000 
92,500 

9~359l038 

9,636,538 

227,511 

1,943,752 
74,149 

2,017,901 

U1~§l!9SO 
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2024 
4£11 

263,197 

2,992.794 
3,635,411 

92,096 
4.798,652 

,11.518,953 

185.000 
92500 

9,234;3Q.9. 
93511,809 

174,078 

2,036,263 
--

. 2,036,263 

l1 .. 12~!1:;tl 

The accompanying notes 1 to 22form an integral part o.fthese.fincmcial statements. 
The Independent Auditors ' Report is set .forth on pages 2 to 3. 
Approved by the board of directors on 5111 May 2025 and signed on its behalf by: 

F'or NILKAMAL CRATES & BINS FZE 

,s;:J 4 . Lt. ciJ--cf! 
Mr. Saumil Mukund Mehta 
Manager 



NILKAMAL CRATES & BINS FZE 

Statement of Comprehensive Income 
for tlte year ended 31 Marclt 2025 

Sales 

Cost of sales 

Gross profit 

Expenses 

Profit from operating activities for the year 

Other income 

Profit for the year before tax 

Income ,t~x ~xpense . 

Profitforthe year ~fter tax 

Other comprehensive income 

Total comprehensive income 

17 

13 

14 

15 

21 

PAGES 

2025 2024 
ilEJl AE12 

14,762,219 17,683,999 

(10,577,334) {12,730,593) 

4,184,885 4,953,406 

(3,130,269) (2,691,133) 

1,054,616 2,262,273 

144,262 ~~12L058 

1,198,878 2,433,331 

(74,149) 

1,124,729 2,433,331 

2.433.J31 
',;,.·.' -.. 

The c:u~companying notes 1 to 22 form an integral part of these finanqial statements. 

-' l. ' 



NILKAMAL CRATES & BINS FZE 

Statement of Changes in Equity 
for the year ended 31 March 2025 

As at 31 March 2023 

Interim dividend paid during the year 

Profit for the year 

As at 31 March 2024 

Interim dividend paid during the year 

Profit for the year after tax 

As at 31 March 2025 

Shal'e 
capital 
dEll 

185,000 

185,000 

185Jlllil 

Statutory 
reserve 
dEll 

92,500 

92,500 

92,200 
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Accumulated 
pl'ofits Total 
&1l 4EJl. 

8,300,978 8,578,478 

(1 ,500,000) (1,500,000) 

2.433,331 2,433,331 

9,234,309 9,511,809 

(1 ,000,000) (1 ,000,000) 

1,124,729 1,124,729 

9,359,0~§ 2,636,538 

The accompanying notes 1 to 22 form an integral part of these financial statements. 



NILKAMAL CRATES & BINS FZE 

Statement of Cash Flows 
for the year ended 31 March 2025 

Cash flows from o~erating activities 
Profit for the year before tax 
Adjustment for: 
Profit on sale of fixed assets 
Provision for staff end of service gratuity 
Provision for slow moving inventories 
Depreciation 
Operating profit before worldng capital changes 
Changes in inventories 
Changes in trade and other receivables 
Changes in prepayments 
Changes in trade and other payables 
Net cash from operating activities 

Cash flow from inVesting activities 
Purchase of fixed assets 
Pl:Oceeds on sale of fixed assets 
Investlnent in fixed deposits 
Net cash (used in) investing activities 

Cash flow from financing activities 
Interim diVidend paid during the year 
Net cash (used in) financing activities 

Net changes in cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents at begiiming of the year 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 16 
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2025 2024 
AEJl AEJl 

1,198,878 2,433,331 

(11,370) 
53,433 35,934 
60,000 
36,664 29,751 

1,348,975 2,487,646 
(452,623) 956,387 

690,297 (252,277) 
(26,572) (23,139) 
(92,511) (1 ,001,752) 

1.467,566 2,166,865 

(6,383) (111,747) 
15,000 

( 4,000,000) 
( 4,006,383) (96,747) 

(1 ,000,000) (1 ,500,000) 
(1,000,000) (1,500,000) 

(3,538,817) . 
4l798l652 
1,252,835 

The accomp'anying niites 1 to 22 forinan integral part of these financial s{at'ements. · 
. . . ) 

,'' (; 



NILKAMAL CRATES & BINS FZE 
(Incorporated in the Ajman Free Zone, Emirate of Ajman, U.A.E.) 
(Registration No. 26166) 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
for the year ended 31 March 2025 

1. Legal status and business activity 

PAGES 

a) NILKAMAL CRATES & BINS FZE ("The Establishment") is a Free Zone 
Establishment registered with the Ajman Free Zone, Ajman, U.A.E. on 09 August 
2003 under the business license No. 1252. 

b) The establishment is registered to cany out activity of general trading I import and 
export. During the year, the establishment has mainly traded in various plastic crates, 
pallets, material handling equipment, racking systems, bins and related products. 

2. Basis of preparation 

n) Statement of compliance 

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards issued or adopted by the International Accounting Standards 
Board (IASB) 'art.d whiCh are effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 

,January 2024 and the implementing rules and regulations of Ajman Free Zone. 

b) . Basis of n1easurement 

Tli.~ finandat statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis. Historical cost 
is generally b'!tsed on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange of assets. 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a 
liability in an orderly transaction between market partiyipants at .the measurer11ent date, 
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or es~imated using another 
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the 
establishment takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market 
participants 'would take those characteristics into account when pricing the ,asset or 
liability at the measurement date, · 

c) Functional and presentation currency 

These financial statements are presented in U .A. E. Dirhams, which is the 
establishment's functional and presentation currency. 

3. Use of esthnates and judgements 

The prepamtion of the financial statements in ·conformity with· IFRS · requires 
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application 
!)f accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and 
expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 

Estld:iates 'imcf underlying assumptions 'are reviewed m1 an dngoihg basis. ReVisioJ1ido 
accoilnting ~stifl:lates are reboghized iri the period in 'which the estimates ard·evised 
and in any future periods affected .. 

Judg'ments made iri applying accounthig policies ' • 
The significantjudgmeitts made in apr)lying accounting policies that have 'the 1nost 
sis;n,ificant effect on· the amounts recoghized in .the fina11cial statemeilts fire as ~ollows: 



NILKAMAL CRATES & BINS FZE 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
for the year ended 31 March 2025 

Revenue from contracts witlt cmilomers 

Sale o(goods- local and export 

• Timing for transfer of control of goods: 
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In case of performance obligation satisfied at point in time, the contl'Ol of goods is 
transferred, when physical delivery of the goods to the agreed location has 
occurred, as a result, the establishment has a present right to payment and retains 
none of the significant risks and rewards of the goods. 

• Financing components 

The establishment does not expect to have any contracts where the period between 
the transfer of the promised goods or services to the customer and payment by the 
customer exceeds one year. As a consequence, the establishment does not adjust 
any of the transaction prices for the time value of money. 

• Determining the transaction price: 
The establishment's revenue from sale of goods is derived from fixed price 
contracts with customers and therefore the amount of revenue to be earned from 
each contract is determ,ined by reference to those fixed prices. Based on the 
historical performance of the establishment, it is highly probable that there will not 
be reversal of previously recognized revenue on account of the return of goods or 
volume rebates. 

• Allocating the transaction prices: 
There is a, fixed tmit price fo~ each item sold to the customer. Therefore, there is no 
judgment involved in allocating tli.e contract price to each unit ordered in, contracts 
with custoiners. Where a customer orders more than one iten1, the establishment is 
able to determine the split of the total contract price between: ·each item by 
reference to each product's standalone selling prices (all product lines are·capable 
of being, and are, sold separately). 

• Provision of rights to retmn goods_, volume rebates and other similar obligations: 
The establislunent reviews its estimate of expected returns at each repmtifig date 
on basis of the historical data for the returns, rebates and other similar obligations 
and updates the amounts of the asset and liability accordingly. 

bnpairment ofJton{inmtcial assets 
At each reporting date, management conducts an assessment of fixed assets to 
determine whether there are any indications that they may be impaired. In the 
absence of such indications, no further action is taken. If such indications do exist, 
an analysis of each asset is undertaken to determine its net recoverable amount and, 
if this is below its carrying amount, a provision is made. 

Deferred tax assets 
Defened tax assets relating to income tax losses have not been recognised on the 
basis that, based on latest forecasts and projections, it is not probable that future 
taxable amounts will be sufficient to realize the assets in the short term. 

Key sources of estimation· uncertainty and assumptions . . 
The key assumptions concerning the. future, and other key sources of estimation 
uncertainty and assumptions at the reporting date, that have significant risk of causing 
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next 
financial year, are discussed below. 



NILKAMAL CRATES & BINS FZE 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
for the year ended 31 Marclt 2025 

Residual Vttlues of fixed assets 

PAGEIO 

Residual values are assumed to be zero unless a reliable estimate of the cu1Tent value 
can be obtained for similar assets of ages and conditions that are reasonably expected 
to exist at the end of the assets' estimated useful lives. 

Estimated useful life of fixed assets 
Management determines the estimated useful lives and depreciation charge for its 
fixed assets at the time of addition of the assets and is reviewed on arumal basis. 

Invelltoty provision 
Management regularly undertakes a review of the establishment's inventory, in order 
to assess the likely realization proceeds, taking in account purchase and replacement 
prices, age, likely obsolescence, the rate at which goods are being sold and the physical 
damage. Based on the assessment assumptions are made as to the level of provisioning 
required. 

·Staff end-of-service gratuity 
The establishment computes the provlSlon for the liability to staff end-of-service 
gratuity assuming that all employees were to leave as of the reporting date. The 
ll).a!).agement· is of the opinion that no significant difference would have arisen had the 
liability been calculated on an actuarial basis as salary inflation and discount rates are 
likely .to have, approximately equal and opposite effects. 

,, ' !o ;'·· :Ji(' <' •. ;;, 

{1npairment of fitumcial (Isseis . , . , . . , , , . . . . . 
The Joss. allovvatwe, for financial assets is. based on assumptions about risk of defatilt 
and expected loss rates. The establishment uses judgment in making these assumptions 
and .~electing tpe inputs to .the impairment calculation, based on the past history, 
existing. marke,t qon~itions .as.w~U ~s fqry,rard looking estimates at .. the end.of earh 
reporting p~riod. · · · · · · · · .. , . · · 

4. Adoption ofnew International Financial Reporting Standards 

a) New and revised International Financial Reporting Standards 

The following International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs), amendments and 
interpretations issued by IASB that became effective for the cu1'1'ent reporting period: 

• Amendments to IFRS 16 -Lease liability in a sale and leaseback. 
• Amendments to lAS 1 - Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-cu11'ent. 
•· Amendments to IAS 1 - Non~current liabilities with Covenants. 
• Amendments to TAS 7 and IFRS 7 -Supplier Finance Arrangements 

During the current year; the management has adopted the above standards and 
amendments to the extent applicable to them from their effective dates. 

These amendments have no significant impact on the amounts ·reported in ·these 
financial statements. Their adoption has resulted in presentation and disclosure 
changes only, ::;', 

:',, 



NILKAMAL CRATES & BINS FZE 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
for the year ended 31 March 2025 

b) International Financial Reporting Standards issued but not effective 
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Amendments to lAS 21 - Lack of Exchangeability. The effective date of the 
amendments is set for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025. 

Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7- Amendments to the classification and 
measurements of financial instruments. The effective date of the amendments is set for 
arumal periods beginning on or after 1 January 2026. 

IFRS 18 - Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements- The effective date of 
the standard is set for annual periods begiru1ing on 01' after 1 January 2027. 

IFRS 19 - Subsidiaries without public accountability: Disclosures- The effective date 
of the standard is set for annual periods begiru1ing on or after 1 January 2027. 

The establishment has not early adopted any other standard, amendment or 
interpretation that has been issued but is not yet effective. 

5. Significant accounting policies: 

a) l)eprt;!ciation of fixed assets 

The cost of fl~ed assets is depreciated by equal annual instalments over their estimated 
\lSe:fullives as under: 

Furniture and office equipment 
VehiCles 

3 - 10 years 
8 years 

The useful lives and depr~ciation method are reviewed periodically to ensure. that the 
tnethod anct p'ei·iod of depreciation are consiste1it with the expe6ted pattern of 
economic benefits from these assets. ·.:. . ' 

Depreciation on addition is calculated on a pro-rata basis from the month of addition 
arid 011 dispbsalto and inci uding the month of disposal of the ,asset: . . . . 

. ' '.. " ' ' . ·. ,. 

b) :Financial instruments 

i. Recognition and Initial measureinent 
The establishment recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes 
a . party to the contractual provisions of the instmment. All firianeiA l assets and 
liabilities are measured at fair value on initial recognition. Transaction costs that are 
directly attributable in relation to financial assets and financial liabilities, other than 
those 'carried at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), are added to the fair value 
on. initial recognition. 

ii. Classification mul subsequent measurement of financial assets 
For the purpose. of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified as follows: 

Financial assets.at amortized cost (debt instruments) 
The establishment's financial assets at amortised cost include trade and other 
receivables and cash arid bank balances. Due to the sh01t term nature of these fimmcial 
assets, their canying amounts are considered to be the same as their fair value. 



NILKAMAL CRATES & BINS FZE 
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Notes to the Financial Statements 
for tlte year ended 31 Marclt 2025 

iii. 

iv. 

v. 

vi. 

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial liabilities 
The establishment's financial liabilities inclllde trade and other payables. The carrying 
amounts of these financial liabilities are considered as to be the same as their fair 
values, due to their short term nature. 

Derecognition of .financial assets andfinancialliabilities 
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is 
discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by 
another from the same lender on substantially different terms, Ol' the terms of an 
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is 
treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new 
liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the 
statement of profit or loss. 

Offsetting of financial instl'uments 
Financial assets and fi11ancial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the 
statement of financial position, if there is a cun·ently enforceable legal right to, pffset 

, the recognized amounts and thereis an intention to settle on a net basis, to rea1ize the 
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

lmpainn.en.t ofJiitancial assets ; , 
The. establishment recognizes an allowance for expected credit losses for all debt 
instnunents not held at fair value through profit or loss. Expected credit losses are 
base.d. on the.' difference between ~he contractual cash. flows due in accordance with the 
contract and all the cash ,flows that the establi,shment exp~~ts to receive, discolmted ,at 
an approximation of the original:effecti~e .h1ter~st rate. The .expected;~ash flow~ ~ill 
include cash flows fi:om the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are 
integral to the contractllal tyrms ... 

E.xp.ected credit losses are recognized in two stages. 

• · For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant :increase in. credit 
risk since initial recognition, expeCted credit losses are· provided for credit losses 
that resi1lt fi'Cim default events that are possible within the next 12•months. , · 

11 For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase :in credit 
risk since initial recogriition, a loss allowance is required tor credit losses expected 
over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default. 

For ·trade receivables, the establislunent applies a simplified approach in calculating 
expected credit losses. lhe establlsltintmt· dues not truck changes in credi:trisk, hut instead 
recogriizes a loss allowance based 'on lifetime expected credit losses at each repmting date. 

c) Invei1tories · 

Inventories are valued at lower of cost using the weighted average method or net 
realizable value .. Cost Comprises invoice value plus applicable direct costs such as 
freight and ctistOm duty. Net realizable value is based on estimate~ sdling price less 
:f'titther cos.t expected to be incurred for disposal.. . . . . . ' 

• I ' ' • • • :, : ~ ' • ·, : : • < " : ' ' : ' 

d) F'or(}ign currency transa,ctions . : . 

Tran:sactibhs in· foreign currencies are converted into- U:A.E. Dirhams at the rate of 
exchange ruling on the date ·Of the transaction. Assets and liabilities expi'essed· in 
foi'eign currencies are translated into U.A.E. Dirhams at the rate of exchange ruling at 
the. balance sheet date. Resulting gain or _ loss is taken to the Statement of 
comprehens~ve income. 

. : 

; ' . ~ 

·.·, <.· 

.. !.i 



NILKAMAL CRATES & BINS FZE 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
for tlte year ended 31 March 2025 

e) Impairment of non~ financial assets 
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The establishment assesses at each repmiing date whether there is an indication that a 
non~financial asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual 
impairment testing for an asset is required, the establishment estimates the asset's 
recoverable amount. 

Where the carrying amount of an asset or cash generating units exceeds its recoverable 
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable 
amount. 

Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognized in the Statement of 
comprehensive income in those expense categories consistent with the function of the 
impaired asset. 

Taxation 

Current income tax 

.•. · Inc0me tax have been provided for in these financial statements in accordance with 
legislation enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date in the United Arab 
Emirate.s where the Company operates and generates taxable income. The income tax 
charge comprises current tax and is recognized in profit or loss for the 
period. 

The~ax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the yeru:. T~xable profit differs 
from profit reported as profit or loss because it excludes items of income or expense 
that are taxable or deductible in other years ru1d it further excludes items that are not 
taxable or tax deductible. 

Taxable profits or losses a~~ based on estimates if these inte~·im finadcial statem€mts 
are authorized prior to filing relevant tax returns. 

Peferred ta;Xes , 

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method, providing for ali 
taxable temporary differences between the carrying amounts of all assets and liabilities 
for financial repmting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. 

-1<( 

Deferred income tax is provided on all taxable temporary differences arising on 
inve~tment in. subsidiary companies, except where tlfe timing of ,th~\,revel'~,!fl ofthe 
temporary differenc.e can be.controlled and it is probable thatthe ternp,orary ,~irfere11ce 
;will not reverse in the foreseeable future. 1 

De~ened tax. assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable 
profits will Lt: available uguin:Jt which the temporary r:lifferences or tax losses can be 
utilized .. 

'·, 

ji' 



NILKAMAL CRATES & BINS FZE 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
for tlte year ended 31 March 2025 

Value Added Tax (VAT) 

PAGE 14 

The revenue, expenses and assets are recognized net of value-added tax (VAT). In case 
Input VAT paid to the supplier of asset or expense is not recoverable from the Federal 
Tax Authority, it is disclosed as part of asset acquired or expense incurred. 

Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of VAT receivable or 
payable. The net amount of VAT recoverable from or VAT payable to FT A is 
disclosed as other payable or other receivable under cun·ent liabilities or cun-ent assets 
respectively in the statement of financial position. 

g) Provision 

Provisions are recognized when the establishment has a legal or constmctive obligation 
as a result of a past event, it is p1'obable that an outflow of resources will be required to 
settle the obligation, and the amount can be reliably estimated. 

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be 
r:equired tQ settle the obligation at the end of the reporting period, using a rate that 
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to 
the obligation. 

h) Staff end of service benefits 
' ' ' 

Provision is made for end-of-service gratuity payable to the staff, subject. to Jhe 
completion .of a minimum service period, at the reporting date in. accordance with the 
local labour laws. 

i) Contingencies 

Co;1tingentliabilities are not recognized in the financial statements. They are disClosed 
unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is 
remote. A contingent asset is not recognized in the financial statements but disclosed 
when an inflow of economic benefits is probable. 

j) Short term leases 

The establishment applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term 
leases of office premises and staff accommodations (i.e., those leases that have a lease 
term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase 
option). Lease payments on short-tem1 leases assets are recognized 1:\S expense on a 
straight-line basis over the lease term. 

k) Revenue recognition 

Sales ofgoods 

The establislunent has mainly traded in plastic crates, pallets, material handling 
equipment, racking systems, bins, hospitality products and related products. 
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NILKAMAL CRATES & BINS FZE 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
for tlte year endetl31 Marclt 2025 

Sales of goods (contd.) 

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized at a point in time when control of the goods 
has transfen·ed to the customer. This is generally when the goods are delivered to the 
customers and have been accepted by the customers at their premises and there is no 
unfulfilled obligation that could affect customer's acceptance of the goods. Delivery 
occurs when the goods have been shipped to the specific location, the risks of 
obsolescence and loss have been transferred to the customer or the establishment has 
objective evidence that all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied. 

The amount of revenue is shown as net of discounts, returns, other similar obligations 
and VAT as per the perfotmance obligations determined as per the provisions of the 
contracts with customers. 

I) Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the cash flow statement comprise of cash 
and cheques on hand, bank balance in current accounts, deposits free of encumbrance 
with a matudty date of three mqnths or less from the date of deposit and highly liquid 
investments with a maturity date of three months or less from the date of investment. 

m) Dividend , , 

6. 

Dividend is .paid out of accumu\ated profits, when declared. Divide!1ci4eclar~.~, for t~e 
year but not paid is disclosed, under cmTent.liabilitieli , . , . 

Furniture. 

:Fixed assets 
and office 

Vehicles 1 Total equipment 

AED.' 4£Jli• ·t1E12 
Cost 
As at,Ol.04.2024 341,041 229,085 570,126 

Addhim~s during the yem; 6,383 
.. 6,383 ... 

As at 31.03.2025 3471424 229,085 576,509 

Depreciation 
366,929 As at 01.04.2024 243,064 123,865 

Charge for the year 24,021 12,643 36,664 

As ~t 31.03.2025 267,085 136,508 '403,593 

Net' book value · 
22,~±z As at 31.03.2025 §0,332 112,~Hfi 

As at 31.03.2024 27.972 Hl5J20 203,121 

In the opinion of the management, there was no impairment (n re>pect of the above fixed as~ets. H~nce 
the cai?ying w:t!ites of the.flxed as~ets as at 31 Mai·ch 2025 approximates to their 1iet book value>'.· · 

. ' ,.'. ~ 



NILKAMAL CRATES & BINS FZE 
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Notes to the Financial Statements 
for the year ended 31 March 2025 

2025 2024 
4Jm c1Ell 

7. Inventories 

Inventories 3,433,776 3,060,579 
Provision for slow moving inventories (438,000) (378,000} 

2,995,776 2,682,579 
Goods in transit 389,641 310,215 

3.385.417 :l122Z1194 
8. Trade and other receivables 

Trade receivables 2,563,192 3,234,496 
Advance to suppliers 203,139 307,286 
Other receivables 94,258 6,979 
Deposits 84,525 86,650 

6,245.114 31635All 
9. Cash and bank balances 

Cash on hand 14,598 27,702 
Bank balances i11: 
Current accoinits 1,245,237 4,770,950 
fixed deposit accounts 4,000,000 

5.259',835 ~h128!652 
10. Share capital 

Authorized, issued and paid up: 
1 share of AED 185,000/- 1851000 185!000 

11. Statutory reserve 
As required by Article 103 of the U.A.E. Commercial Companies Law No. 2 of io 15, 
statutory reserve is created by allocating 10% of the net profit of the establlshme~1t 
The establishment has discontinued such annual transfers as tllis reserve totals 50% of 
the paid up share capital. The reserve is not available for d.istribt~tion except as 
provided in the Federal Law. . . 

2025 
' 

2024 
&Jl· 4$12 

12. Trade and other payables 

Trade payables (refer note 17) 1,669,648 1,784,394 
Advance from customers 190,600 183,728 
Accruals 28,824 28,901 
Other payable 54,680 39,240 

1.243.752 2,o;.Hi126J 

13. Cost of sales 

Inventories at beginning of the year 3,060,579 2,822,930 
Purchases (l·efer note 1 7) 9,827,601 11,540,608 
Other direct costs (refer note 17) 1,062,930 1,427,634 
Provision for slow moving inventories 60,000 
Inventories at the ~nd ofthf'l yeFJr (3,433,776) (3,06Q..i79J 

10!571.334 12!130!593 



NILKAMAL CRATES & BINS FZE 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
for tlt.e year euded 31 March 2025 

14. Expenses 

Manager's remuneration (l·efer note 17) 

Staff salaries and benefits 
Rent 
Other administration expenses 
Bad debts written off 
Depreciation (l·efer note 6) 

15. Other income 
Exchange gain 
Profit on sale of fixed assets 
Miscellaneous income 

16. Cash and cash equivalents 
:. ~ . . ' . 

. Cash. on·hl:l-nd 
Ballk. balanc.es in: 
Current accounts 

17. Rel~ted partY tran,sactions 

2025 
AEll 

424,092 
1,040,170 

336,195 
1,271,252 

21,896 
36,664 

3.1302262 

49,547 

94,715 
144.262 

14,598 

1,245,237 
1.259.835 
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2024 
t1EJl 

389,472 
1,078,138 

318,608 
875,164 

29,751 
~,Q21!1~~ 

53,860 
11,370 

1Q.?. .• ~28 
171.058 

27,702 

4,71b,950 
4.798.652 

Ff?r the purposeof this financial statement, parties are considered to be related to the 
e~tablishinent, if the establishment has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the 
piutyor exei·dse significant influence over the pmty in making that patty's financial 
and operatirig decisions, or vice versa, or where the establishment' arid the party ru;e 
subject to common control or common significant influence. Related party n'lay be 
individuals or other entities. 

The nature and amount of significant transactions during the year are as under: 

Purchases 
(1'efe1· note 13) 
Othei· diteet costs 
(refer note 13) 
Manager's 
remuneration 
(rqfer note 14) 

J(ey 
Managerial 
PI!.I'SOll/11!.1 

2025 
A£I). 

424,092 

Parent 
company 

2025 
A£I). 

1,885,924 

Common 
management 

control 

4Ell 

1,452,942 

Toillf 
2025 

dEll 

3,338,866 

Toiul 
2024 

AEl1 

3,215,200 

.· '88,632 

424,092 389,472 



NILKAMAL CRATES & BINS FZE 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
for the year ended 31 Mllrch 2025 

Related party transactions (contd.) 

At the reporting date, balances with related patiies were as follows: 
Common 

mauagemeut Parellt 
collft•o/ company 
2025 2025 

Jlill dEll 
Included in current liabilities: 
Trade payables (refer note 12) 139,187 
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Total Total 
2025 2024 

AE11 dEll 

139,187 518,173 

18. Financial instruments: Credit, interest rate, liquidity risk and 
exchange rate risl< exposures 

The establishment has exposure to the following risks from its use financial 
instruments: 

a) Credit risk 
b) Market risk 
c) Liquidity risk 

a) · Credit risk 

f'j11anfial.~sets". which po,tentia,lly ,expose the establishment to concentrations of credit 
risk, comprise principally of trade and other receivables and bank balances. 

Trade receivables ' .. ·. 
As at 31 March 2025, the establishment's maximum exposure to credit risk from trade 
receivables situated within U.A.E. amounted to AED 602,834/- due from one customer 
(previous year AED 500,0001- dueji·o111 one custome1~. 

111ere. are 110 Rignificant concentrations of credit risk from trade receivables situai~d 
outside U .A.~. and outside the industry in which the establishment oper~tes. 

Bank ba(ance$,i , , , , . • . · ,;; ; \ ; ~ ... 
The, establishm.ent' s bank balances in current and fixed deposit accounts are placed 
witlti~igh ~rcdit quality financiai institutions. 

b) Market risl~: 

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument 
will fluctuate because of changes in market prices, such as currency risk, interest rate 
risk and equity prices risk, which will affect the establishment's income or the value of 
its holding of financial instruments. 

Interest rate risk 
Interest on fixed deposits is at fi}j:ed rate. 

Exchange rate risk ,. 
There are no significant exchange tate risks as substantially all fmancial assets and 
financial liabilities are denominated in U.A.E .. Dirpams. or US Dollar;; to .w.l1ic~1, the 
U.A.E. Dirha1n is fixed, 

'_;.!' 

!:: 
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NILKAMAL CRATES & BINS FZE 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
for the year ended .11 Mtlrch 2025 

c) Liquidity risk 

19. 

The following are the contractual maturities of the establishment's financial liabilities 
as of 31 March 2025. 

Cflfl)l/ltg Payable wltllin Payable after 
amouuts next 12 montlts 12 mollths 

Non-derivative jlnancia//iabi/ities AE12 t1EJ2 tWJl 

Staff end of service gratuity 219,194 219,194 

Trade and other payables: 
Trade payables 1,699,648 1,699,648 
Advance from customers 190,600 190,600 
Accruals 28,824 28,824 
Other payable 54,680 54,680 

Financial instruments: Fair values 

The fair values of the establishment's financial assets, comprising of trade and other 
receivables and bank balances and financial liabilities comprising of trade and other 
payables approximate to their carrying values. 

20. Contingent liability 
There was no contingent liability of a significant amount outstanding as at the 
reporting date. 

2025 2024 
A.Ell AE1l 

21. Taxation 

Cunent tax, expense 

On 9 December 2022, the UAE Ministry of Finance released Federal Decree-Law No. 
47 of 2022 on the Taxation of Corporations and Businesses ("Corporate Tax Law" or 
"the Law") tQ enact a Federal Corporate Tax ("CT") regime in the UAE. The Cabinet 
of Ministers Decision No. 116 of 2022 specifies the threshold of income over which 
the 9% CT rate would apply and accordingly, the Law is now copsidered to be 
substantively enacted from the perspective of lAS 12,- Income Taxes. A rate of 0% 
will apply to taxable income upto AED 375,000, a rate of 9% will apply to taxable 
income exceeding AED 375,000. 

Fmther, profit before tax is equivahml lo taxable profit and hence thei·e is no deferred 
tax adjustment as per Corporate Tax of the Federal Decree law no. 47 of2022. The tax 
expense for the year is reconciled to the profit before tax as per statement of 
comprehensive income as follows-

Profit before tax in AED 
Tax charge ofO% on profit up to AED 375,000 
Tax charge of9% on profit beyond AED 375,000 

22. Comparative figures 

1,198,878 

74,149 

2,433,331 
N/A 
NIA 

Previous years figures have been regrouped/ reclassified wherever necessary to 
conform to the presentation adopted in the current year. 

; ' 



NIL KAMAL 
FOUNDATION 

BALANCE SHEET 

F. Y. 2024 - 2025 

A.Y. 2025-2026 

~=======.! 

;3 
~l 

I 



SHETI-I DOCTOR & ASSOCIATES 
CHARTERED ACCOUNT ANTS 

B 401, Shree Ramdev Apartments 
Dr. Dalvi Road, Near Bank Of India, 

I<andivali (W) Mumbai 400067 
Telephone : (022) 28058438 

Mob: 9819748438 
E-mail: doctor_paresh@yahoo.co.in 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

The Members of 
NILKAMAL FOUNDATION 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of NILKAMAL FOUNDATION (a Company 
not for Profit and Limited by Shares registered under Section 8 of the Companies Act 2013), which 
comprises Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2025 the Statement of Income and Expenditure Account 
and Cash Flow statement for the year ended 31st March 2025, and a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information. 
Opinion 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a 
tt'tle and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India : 
(a) In the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March 2025 
(b) In the case of the Profit and Loss Account, of the Loss for the year ended on that date: 
(c) In the case of Cash Flow Statement, of its Cash flow during the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the 'Auditor's 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements' Section of our Report. We are 
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to 
our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules there under, and 
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the 
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. 

Information other than the financial statements and Auditors report thereon ('Other information') 
The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The 
other information comprises the information included in the Company's annual report, but does not 
inel ucte the flllant:ial sta teml:!ni.S ant.! a utlllUJ '~> 1 I.e! yut L lltetull. 

Our Opinion on the financial statements does not cover the information and we do not express any 
form of assurance or conclusions thereon. 
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with 
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or other wise appears to be materially 
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of the other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report 
in this regard. 



Managements ' Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the 
Companies Act 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give 
a h·ue and fair view of the financial position and financial performance in accordance with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified 
under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014. This 
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting 
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies i making 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent ; and design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
accuracy and completeness of accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the 
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management and the Board of Directors are responsible for 
assessing the Company's ability to continue as going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters 
related to going concern and using the going concem basis of accounting unless management either 
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Auditor's Responsibility for the audit of the financial statements 

Our objective are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report 
that include our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but it is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs, will always detect a material misstatement when it 
exists. Misstatement can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in 
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decision of users taken on 
the basis of the financial statements. · 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. ,We also: 
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 

fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control. · . 
Obtain an under~tanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's tlse of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in 
our auditors report to the related disclosures conclusions are based on the audit evidence 
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause 
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
intem11l contn~l that we identify durine ;;~n audit. 
We alsc;> provide those .charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 
where applicable, related safeguards. 



From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters 
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are 
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or 
regulation precludes public be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of 
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 
communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulato1'Y Requirements 

l. The Companies ( Auditor's Report) Order,2020 ('the CARO 2020 Order") issued by the Central 
Government in terms of the Section 143(11) of the Act, is not applicable to the Company. 

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

a. We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best our knowledge and belief 
were necessary for the purpose of audit. 

b. In our opinion proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the Company so far 
as appears from our examination of those books . 

c. The Balance Sheet Statement of Income and Expenditure Account, Cash Flow Statement and other 
notes thereon dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of accounts. 

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the accounting standards referred to 
in the Section 133 of the Companies Act,2013 and read with Rule No 7 of the Companies 
Accounting Rules 2014. 

e. On the basis of representations received from the directors as on Mar 31, 2025 and taken on record 
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on Mar 31,2025 from being 
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 

f. With respect to other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 
the. Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information 
and according to the explanations given to us: 

i.As per the information and explanations giv~n to us there are no pending litigations other than 
those disclosed in the financial statements. 
ii In the opinion of the company no provision is required under any law or accounting standards, 
for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long term contracts including derivative contracts. 
iii There are no amounts to be transferred to Investor Education & Protection Fund duripg the 
year. 

For M/s Sheth Doctor and Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
(Firm Regn No. 124822W) 
UDIN NO 25036056BMLIGW9063 
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Paresh S Doctor 
Proprietor 
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Membership No. 036056 

Mumbai. 
Date : 16~1 April2015 



ASSETS 

Current Assets 

Cash & Cash Equivalents 

Other Current Assets 

TOTAL ASSETS 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

EQUITY 

Equity Share Capital 
Other Equity 

LIABILITIES 

CURRENT liABILITIES 

Other Payables 

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

Bas1s of Preparation, measurement 
and significant accounting policies 

NILKAMAL FOUNDATION 

BALANCE SHEET 

As AT 31st MARCH, 2025 

Note As at 
31st March, 2025 

1 0.46 
2 0.10 

0.56 

3 0.01 

4 0.37 

5 0.18 

0.56 

10 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements 

As per our report of even date 

FOR SHETH DOCTOR & ASSOCIATES 

Firm Registeration No. 0124822W 

Choctoced~::""'' 

e::·~p ;::::-____ . ......-::...=:." 
Paresh S. Doctor 

Proprietor 
Membership No. 36056 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 16th April, 2025 

UDIN : 2~0%056ElMLI(;WYUb3 

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of 

(Rupees in Lakhs) 

As at 
31st March, 2024 

10.88 
0.18 

11.05 

0.01 
10.87 

0.18 

11.05 



NILKAMAL FOUNDATION 

INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2025 

(Rupees in Lakhs) 

Note Year Ended Year Ended 

31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 

INCOME 

Donation Received 6 7.05 -
Other Income 7 0.13 0.39 

TOTAL INCOME 7.18 0.39 

EXPENDITURE 

Program Expense 8 17.05 -

Other Expense 9 0.63 0.33 

TOTAL EXPENSES 17.68 0.33 

-

Excess I {Shortfall) of income over expenditure [A] -10.50 0.06 

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR [B) -

TOTAL COMPREHENSIV~ INCOME FOR THE YEAR [A-B) -10.50 0.06 

Earnings/ (Loss) per equity share 

Basic & Diluted( In Rupees ) -0.1049740 0.00057580 

(Face Value of Rs. 10 each) 

Basis of preparation, measurement 
10 

and significant accounting policies 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements 

As per our report of even date 

FOR SHETH DOCTOR & ASSOCIATES 

.Firm Registeration No. 0124822W 

Chartered Accountants 

~J, 
~o:-~ r"'-: ~~ 
~~ ...,.,...-~ ·-· 

Paresh S. Doctor 

Proprietor 

Membership No. 36056 

Place : Mumbai 

Date: 16th April, 2025 

UDIN : 25036056BMLIGW9063 

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of 

Nilkamal Foundation A 
CIN : U74999M..l!@Jl6NPL2~439~. (4_. ,f' 

J y __ /"-,_JV-~ 
V~ V, /IJ ~ 

f ... t '1 I 
. ·(./ \ . f' I· . .I I) .• d /'l ,.,/'t_,/"L/" .. / l-;t 

-------···7.. Y t..r \..,.-/ t"" ,_ I 
Vamanrai V. Parekh .. . Sharad V. Parekh // 

// 
Director IJirector 

DIN : 00037519 DIN : 00035747 



NILKAMAL FOUNDATION 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2025 

Year Ended 

31st March, 2025 
A. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITITES: 

Excess/ {Shortfall) of income over expenditure 

Adjustments for: 

Interest Income 

Changes in Working Capital 

lncr·ease/ (Decrease) in current assets 

Increase/ (Decrease) in current liabilities 

Increase/ (Decrease) in other bank balances 

Direct Taxes Paid 

Net cash generated from/ (used in) operating activities· [A] 

B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES· [B] 
Interest Received 

C. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Interest paid 

Net cash (used in)/ generated from financing activities· [C] 

Net Increase/ (Decrease) in Cash And Cash equivalents- [A+ B + C] 

ADD: Cash and Cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 

Cash And Cash equivalents at the end of the year 

Note: The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the indirect 

method as set out in the lnd AS 7. 'Statement of Cash Flows' 

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthese financial statements 

As per our report of even date 

-10.50 

-0.13 

-0.10 
.. 

-
0.18 

·10.55 

0.13 

0.13 

-

-10.42 

10.88 

0.46 

FOR SHETH DOCTOR & ASSOCIATES 

Firm Registeration No. 0124822W 

Chartered Accountants 

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of 

Nilkamal Foundation 

~~~ 
c-;~ .,.,.- ....-e::: 

p(f"fish S. GO"ctor-

Proprietor 

Membership No. 36056 

Place: Murnbai 

De>le. 1Gth April, 202S 

UDIN: 25036056BMLIGW9063 

CIN : U74999MH2016NPL284394 

.. l/_. J!_, 
' 

(Rupees in Lakhs) 

Year Ended 

31st March, 2024 

0.06 

·0.39 

-

-

-

3.79 

3.46 

. 
0.39 

0.39 

. 

3.85 

7.03 

10.88 



NILKAMAL FOUNDATION 

10. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2025 

1. COMPANY OVERVIEW 

Nilkamal Foundation ("The Company"), a not for profit company, within the meaning of 

section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013 was incorporated in India on August 3, 2016. Pursuant 

to the enactment of Companies Act, 2013 and section 135 of The Companies Act, 2013, the 

Company as an implementing agency, would carry out Corporate Social Responsibility ('CSR') 

activities as per CSR policy adopted by Nilkamal Limited and its group companies in line with 

schedule VII ofThe Companies Act, 2013. The Company would primarily focus on CSR activities 

in undertaking programs/projects majority in the field of education, health, and 

environmental sustainability, Relief and Rehabilitation. However, the company shall also 

undertake any the activities as suggested under section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, and 

which are also mentioned in the main object clause of the Memorandum of Association of the 

company, as and when the Company feels it necessary to expand.· 

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION, MEASUREMENT AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MEASUREMENT 

a) BASIS OF PREPARATION 

These financial statements have been in accordance with the Indian Accounting 

Standard [hereinafter referred to as the 'lnd AS'] as notified by Ministry of Corporate 
' ' 

Affairs pursuant to section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 3 of the 

Companies [Indian Accounting Standards] Rules, 2015 that are notifi,ed and other 

relevant provisions of the Act. 

The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual and going concern basis. 

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non current as per the 

Company's normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the division 11-lnd AS 

Schedule Ill to the Companies Act, 2013. The Company has ascertained its operating 

cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current or non current classification of assets 

and liabilities. 



NILKAMAL FOUNDATION 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2025 
(Rupees in Lakhs) 

1] CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

As at As at 
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 

Balances with banks 0.29 10.71 
Cash On hand 0.16 0.16 

0.46 10.88 

2] OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 

As at As at 
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 

Income Tax Paid - 0.18 
rcurity Deposit (NSDL) 0.10 

0.10 0.18 

3] EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL 

As at As at 
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 

Authorised 0.01 0.01 
100 equity shares of Rs. 10 each 

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up 0.01 0.01 
100 equity shares of Rs. 10 each 

. 
~~~.. . . -

0.01 0.01 ---
a) Reconciliation of the number of shares 

As at As at 

31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 

Equity shares No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount 

Balance at the beginning of the year 100 0.01 100 0.01 

Add I (Less): 

Balance at the end of the year 100 0.01 100 0.01 

b) Rights, preference and restrictions attached to the shares 

The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value Rs. 10 per share. Each shareholder Is eligible for one 

vote per share held. As the Company is a private company limited by shares of formed under section 8 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 , no dividend Is to be proposed and paid to the shareholders. In the event of winding up or dissolution of the 

company, after the satisfaction of all its debts and liabilities, any property whatsover shall be given or transferee! to some 

other institutlon(s) having obect similar to the objects of the Company, to be determined by the members of the company . --"#N·«•" 

at or before the time of dissolution or In default thereof by the High Court. , •. ;:::;~\'\'f;~R·;:z~ 
. /(:~;}~ ., ~-~~:·:::~ 
c) .Shares held by holding company and subsidiary of holding company In aggregate ~ ') 

I' 'I ''Y~~/'~··j 
'' ~ -·1;-~(kz~.v \ ~: :·)/ 

~ /~:;;. 
fro"Acco'\J~~'fl 
~-~7 

--
As at Asat ~-., 
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 

Equity shares of Rs.lO each held by: 

99 shares are held by Nilkmal Limited, the holding company 990.00 990.00 

1 share is held by Cambro Nilkamal Private Limited 10.00 10.00 



d) Details of equity shares held by shareholders holding more than 
5% of the aggregate shares in the company 

0~' ---·-···---··-~'""-'-"~M~ .... . 

Number of shares of Rs. 10 each held by: 

Nilkamal Limited, the holding company 
%of holding 

4] OTHER EQUITY 

As at 1st April, 2024 

Excess of Income over expenditure for the year 

-~-.~· 

As at 31st March, 2024 

5] OTHER PAY ABLES 

L~, ~~-
I 
loT:•d• P•y•ble< 

As at As at 
31st March, 2025 31st Marcn, 2024 

990.00 990.00 
99% 99% 

Retained Earnings Retained Earnings 

10.87 10.81 

-10.50 0.06 

0.37 10.87 

As at As at 

31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 

0.18 0.18 

0.18 0.18 

2024-25 Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 
f---
Particulars Urtbllled Not due < 1 Year 1-2 years 2-3 years 

Undisputed MSME 
Undisputed Other·s 0.18 

~uted dues - MSME 
outed dues- Others 

2023-24 Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 
Partiwlars Unbilled Not due < 1 Year 1-2 years 2-3 years 

~disputed MSME 

~~Undisputed Others 0.18 -
Disputed dues· MSME 

Disputed dues- Others 

As at As at 
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 

Principal outstanding of amount payable as on 31st March 2016 relating to 

suppliers registered as Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development 

Act, 2006 - . 
Interest due thereon - -
Amount of interest paid alongwith the amount of payments made beyond 

the amount day - -

Amount of interest due and payable (where the principal is already paid but 

interest has not been paid) - -
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each 

~counting year. - -
----·-

6] DONATIONS RECEIVED r'-'----·--
For the period ended For the period ended 

31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 

Voluntary Contributions 7.05 -

(From holding Company & Associates- Note No. 4(b)) 
7.05 -

Total 
> 3 years 

0.18 

> 3 years 
Total 

0.18 



7] OTHER INCOME 
,---"-· 

For the period ended For the period ended 

31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 

Interest Received· SB 0.12 0.18 
Interest received on Income Tax refund 0.01 0.22 

-·· 
0.13 0.39 

8) PROGRAM EXPENSES 

For the period ended For the period ended 

31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 

Donations Paid 10.00 -
Program Expenses 7.05 

17.05 -

9] OTHER EXPENSES 
For the period ended For the period ended 

31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 
--"•-•n·~----

Bank Charges 0.01 -
ROC Fees 0.15 0.14 

Audit Fees 0.18 0.18 

Other expense 0.21 -
Professional Fees 0.08 0.02 

0.63 0.33 



b) BASIS OF MEASUREMENT 

These financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention unless 

otherwise indicated. 

2.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

a. Revenue Recognition 

I) Voluntary Contribution: 

Contributions received other than for corpus donations are recognized as income 

in the year of receipt. 

Contributions received as corpus donations with future commitment for CSR 

expenses, are credited to 'Fund held in corpus donation' in the Balance sheet 

under the head of other current liabilities. and will be disbursed as per the 

direction of the donar for carrying out the CSR activities of the Company. 

II) Interest Income on Fixed Deposits are accounted on accrual basis. 

b. Expenses 

All expenses are accounted for on accrual basis and provision is made for all 

known losses and liabilities. 

c. Program Expenses 

The said expenses represents various expenditure incurred by the company on 

activities and projects covered by "Corporate Social Responsibility " (CSR) as 

specified under Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013. Expenditure on projects 

are written off in the respective year of it's spending irrespective of it's stage of 

completion. The same i~ accounted for as & when paid. 

d. Earnings Per Share 

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net excess/ (shortfall) for the 

period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of 

equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of 

equity shares outstanding during the period and for all periods presented is 

adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential 

equity shares, that have d1anged the number of equity shares outstanding, 



without a corresponding change in resources. For the purpose of calculating 

diluted earnings per share, the net profit for the period attributable to equity 

shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the 

period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. 

e. Cash And Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash on hand, cash in bank and deposits with 

banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances (with an original maturity of 

three months or less from the date of acquisition) highly liquid investments that 

are readily convertibles into known amounts of cash and which are subject to 

insignificant risk of changes in value. 

f. Income Tax 

The company has been granted exemption from Income tax under section 12A 

read with section 12AA of the Income Tax Act, 1961. 

3. CONTINGENT LIABLITY AT YEAR END: NIL 

4. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 

Enterprises exercising control 

a. Holding Company: Nilkamal Limited 

b. Other related parties with whom transactions have taken place: NIL 

Disclosure of transactions between the company and related parties and the status of 

outstanding balance as in 31st March, 2025 . 

Name of The Party 

a. Holding Company 
Nilkamal Limited 

Donations received 

Year ended 
3Pt March, 

2025 

Rs. 7.05 

Year ended 
31st March, 

2024 



5. EARNINGS PER SHARE HAS BEEN COMPUTED AS UNDER 

Year Ended 31'1 

March, 2025 
(Rs.) 

(In Lakhs) 

Year Ended 31'1 

March, 2024 
(Rs.) 

Excess/ (Shortfall) of income over expenditure for the year -10.50 0.06 

Weighted average number of equity share outstanding 100 100 

Earnings per share (Rs.)- basic and diluted (face value of 
Rs 10 per share) 

-10497.40 57.58 

As per our report of even date 

FOR SHETH DOCTOR & ASSOCIATES 

Firm Registration No. 0124822W 

ChactmdK~~ants 

rJ..-.:> v~.-----~ 
PareshS. Doctor 

Proprietor 

Membership No. 36056 

Place : Mumbai 
Date : 161h April, 2025 
UDIN : 25036056BMLIGW9063 

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of 

Nilkamal Foundation 
CIN- U74999MH2016NPL284394 

/) ~ ·.· · ..... •J > ,1 ~t -"1 i A /ll/lA.l,/ ;---~ ::~:.~)vrl/1/ /C . l 

Vamanrai V. P ""'h __ '_··=· Sharad V. Parekh ( 
Direct~- Director · 
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Shape the future 
with confidence 

NYR/KRA/JJ 

Ernst & Young 
Chartered Accountants 
flotunda Towers 
No. 109, Galle f<oad 
P.O. Box 101 
Colombo 0.3, Sri Lanka 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Tel : +94 11 246 3500 
Fax : +94 11 768 7869 
Emc1il: eysl@lk.ey.com 
ey.com 

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF NILKAMAL ESWARAN MARKETING (PRIVATE) LIMITED 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of Nilkamal Eswaran Marketing (Private) Limited, which 
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2025, and the statement of comprehensive 
income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes 
to the financial statements, including material accounting policy information. 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position 
of the Company as at 31 March 2025 and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year 
then ended in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards for small and medium - sized entities 
(SLFRS for SMEs). 

Basis for opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards (SLAuSs). Our responsibilities 
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial 
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of 
Ethics for Professional Accountants issued by CA Sri Lanka (Code of Ethics) and we have fulfilled our 
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence 
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in 
accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards for Small and Medium - Sized Entities (SLFRS for 
SMEs), and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation 
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

' . ' 

In preparing the finan~ial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to 
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those charged with governant:l:l are Jl:!~f.Jul13ible for ovorw!iiling thP r:nmpany's financial reporting 
process. 

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with SLAuSs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 
basis of these financial statements. 

(\,ontd ... 2/) 

<l<llil<h]Mllw<~> f'CA FCMA U 8 (i om!on), /\ P A Cw;,~s~kew rC.J\ FCMi\, M~. Y 1\ De Silva FCJ\, Ms. C C S Manatungo FCA, W K B S P fe.rrwndo FCA f'CM/\, ?\F. l!.'1jesudyu F('f.;, fCMI\, 
Ms. N A D:o> Silva FCA, N M S\;!aln1an FCA FCI....ttl., Ms. L K H l Fon~eha fC/l,, Ms. P V K N Saj~:ew;.::mi FCA, f:.. A J ll Perera FCA ActviA, N '( R L fernando ACA, 

D N L<>:r,ayc, ACA AC!//.>., C A Yal~gaia ACP. ACMA, 1:3 Vasanth~~n /J.CA AOJA, W l) P L Pe-mra ACA 

ACMA, M~. f' S Para1'1J\'Itane· ACA. ACMA LLB (Ct)(Ornbo), 0 l. B K.:1runEJthH.:~I<El ACMA, W S .JOe, ~.lh'S Bsc (Hons) ·MIS t.isc ·· n, 



Shape the future 
with confidence 

As part of an audit in accordance with SLAuSs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of 
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to 
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a 
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions 
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evalqate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements 

As required by section 163 (2) of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007, we have obtained all the 
information and explanations that were required for the audit and, as far as appears from our 
examination, proper accounting records have been kept by the Company. 

09 May 2025 
Colombo· 
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Nilkamal Eswaran Marketing (Private) Limited 
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
Y car ended 3 l March 2025 

Note 2025 2024 
Rs. Rs. 

Revenue 4 79,711,086 55,852,068 

Cost of Sales (58,089,593) (37,091,585) 

Gross Profit 21,621,493 18,760,483 

Administrative Expenses (615,513) (1,170,084) 

Distribution Expenses (2,034,773) (253,559) 

Profit from Operations 18,971,207 17,336,840 

Finance Income 12.1 2,612,037 3,282,485 

Finance Cost' 12.2 (263,568) (124,908) 

Profit Before Taxation 21,319,675 20,494,417 

Income Ta" Expense 13 ( 6,664, 794) (6,010,945) 

Profit for the Year 14,654,881 14,483,473 

The accounting policies and notes on pages 07 through 16 fonu an integral part of the Financial Statements. 
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Nilkamal Eswaran Marketing (Private) Limited 
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL .POSITION 
As at 31 March 2025 

ASSETS 
Current Assets 
Inventories 
Trade and Other Receivables 
Cash <md Cash Equivalents 

Total Assets 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

C:tpitltl and Reserves 
Stated Capital 
Retained Eamings 

Total Equity 

Current Liabilities 
Trade aud Other Payables 
Related Party Payable 
Cunent Taxation 

Bank Overdrail 

Total Equity a.nd Liabilities 

Note 

5 
6 

11.1 

7 

9 
10 

11.2 

2025 2024 

Rs. Rs. 

40,034,706 30,989,463 
16,774,545 23,1 R7,740 
~0,600,161 n3o2.J 12 
97,409,412 87,~79_2_!..2_ 
97,409,4 I 2 87,479,315 

1,000 1,000 

91,288,182 76,633,30 I 

91 ,289,182 ___ 2?.~~-4.3~!_ 

2,465,356 

3,654,874 

__ 6_,120,230 
97,409,412 

I ,443,007 
2,934,871 

3,312,431 
3;154,706 

10,845,015 
87,479,315 

T certify that these Financi:tl Statements are in compliance with the tequiremems of th1.· Companies Act .No 07 of 2007. 

The Board of Directors is responsible for these Financial Statemc,nts. Sigm:d fur and on behalf vf th<' Board by: 

Tltt a<.;~Vt!Hlillg pulkic> 1tUd Hc•t(S on page.~ 07 tlll'ough 16 form un intcgrul purl of tho Finllnoiul Stitt0mtlnt.c<. 

09 May 2025 

Colombo 



Nilkarnal Eswaran Marketing (Private) Limited 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
Year ended 3 1 March 2025 

Note Stated Retained Total 
Capital Earnings 

Rs. Rs. Rs. 

As at 31 March 2023 1,000 62,149,827 62,150,827 

Profit for the Year 14,483,473 14,483,473 

As at 31 March 2024 1,000 76,633,301 76,634,300 

Profit for the Year 14,654,881 14,654,881 

As at 31 Ma1·ch 2025 1,000 91,288,182 91,289,181 

The accounting policies and notes on pages 07 through 16 form an integral patt of the Financial Statements. 

-5-



Nilkamal Eswaran Marketing (Private) Limited 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
Year ended 31 March 2025 

Note 2025 2024 
Cash Flows From I (Used in) Operating Activities Rs. Rs. 

Pro tit before Income Tax Expenses 21,319,675 20,494,417 

Adjustments tor 

Provision I (Reversal) for slow moving inventories 5.1 258,250 (469,678) 
Provision I (Reversal) for impairment of trade debtors 642,012 1,976 
Interest expense 12.2 263,568 124,908 

Operating Proflt before Working Capital Changes 22,483,505 20,151,623 

(Increase )/Decrease in Inventories (9,303,492) (8,799,668) 
(Increase )/Decrease in Trade and Other Receivables 5,771,184 (14,236,455) 
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade and Other Payables 1,022,349 628,841 
Increase/( Decrease) in Related Party Payable (2,934,871) 2,934,871 

Cash Generated from Operations 17,038,675 679,212 

Tax Paid 10 ( 6,322,353) (5,016,333) 
Interest Paid 12.2 (263,568) (124,908) 

Net Cash Flows (used in)/ fl·om Operating Activities 10,452,754 (4,462,029) 

Cash Flows from I (used in) Investing Activities 

Net Cash Flows tl·mn/ (used in) Investing Activities 

Cash Flows from I (used in) Financing Activities 

Net Cash Flows from I (used in) Financing Activities 

Net (Decrease) I Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 10,452,754 ( 4,462,029) 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 11 30,147,406 34,609,435 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 40,600,161 30,147,406 

The accounting policies and notes on pages 07 tlu·ough 16 fom1 an integral part of the Financial Statements. 
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Nilkamal Eswaran Marketing (Private) Limited 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Year ended 31 March 2025 

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION 

1.1 General 

Nilkamal Eswaran Marketing (Private) Limited ("the Company") is a private limited liability company 
incorporated and domiciled in Sri Lanka. The registered office and the principal place of business of the 
Company is located at 328, Madapatha Road, Batakettera, Piliyandala. 

1.2 Principal Activities and Nature of Operations 

The principal activity of the Company is buying and selling all kinds of furniture and crates. 

1.3 Parent Entity and Ultimate Parent Entity 

The Company's parent entity and ultimate parent entity are Nilkamal Eswaran Plastics (Private) Limited and 
Nilkarnal Limited- India respectively. 

1.4 Date of Authorization for Issue 

The Financial Statements of Nilkamal Eswar·ar1 Mar·keting (Private) Limited for the year ended 31 Mar·ch 
2025 were authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors on 09 May 2025. 
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Nilkamal Eswaran Marketing (Private) Limited 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Year ended 31 March 2025 

2. GENERAL POLICIES 

2.1 Basis of preparation 

These Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the Sri Lanka Financial Reporting 
Standards for Small and Medium-sized Entities issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri 
Lanka. 

The functional currency of the Company is Sri Lankan Rupees. The Financial Statements of the Company 
are presented in Sri Lankan Rupees. The Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis 
unless otherwise indicated. 

2.2 Statement of Compliance 

The Finm1cial Statements of the Compm1y, which comprise the Statement ofFinm1cial Position, Statement of 
Comprehensive Income, Changes in Equity and Cash Flows together with Accounting Policies and Notes to 
the Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards for Small 
and Medium-sized Entities. 

The preparation and presentation of these Financial Statements are in compliance with the requirements of 
the Companies Act No.07 of2007. 

2.3 Going Concern 

The Directors have made an assessment of the Company's ability to continue as a going concern and is 
satis±led that it has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. Fmihermore, management 
is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast signitlcant doubt upon the Company's ability to 
continue as a going concern. Therefore, the Financial Statements continue to be prepared on the going 
concem basis. 

2.4 Comparative Information 

Where necessary, comparative ±lgures have been rearranged to conform with the current year's presentation. 

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these 
Financial Statements. 

3.1 Foreign Currency Transactions 

Transactions in foreign cunencies me translated to the fimctional currency at the exchm1ge rates at the elates 
of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are 
retranslated to the functional cunency at the exchange rate at that date. 

The foreign currency gain or loss on monetary items is the difference between m11ortised cost in the 
functional currency at the beginning of the period, adjusted for effective interest and payments during the 
period, and the amortised cost in foreign currency translated at the exchange rate at the end of the reporting 
period. 

Foreign currency differences arising on retranslation are recognised in profit or loss. Non-monetmy items 
that me measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at 
the elate of the transaction. 
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Nilkamal Eswaran Marketing (Private) Limited 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Year ended 31 March 2025 

3.2 Income Tax Expense 

Income ta"X expenses comprise of CUJTent & de felTed ta"X expenses recognized in the Statement of Profit or 
Loss and Other Comprehensive Income. 

a) Current Taxation 

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year 
and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current 
ta"X payable or receivable is the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received that 
reflects uncertainty related to income taxes, if any. It is measured using tax rates enacted or 
substantively enacted at the reporting date. 

The Company's liability to taxation has been computed in accordance with the provisions of the Inland 
Revenue Act No. 24 of 2017 and subsequent gazette notifications. 

b) Deferred Taxation 

Deferred tax is provided on the liability method for all temporm)' differences as at the reporting elate 
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for 
financial reporting purposes. The balance in the deferred taxation accmmt represents income tax 
applicable to the difference between the written down values for ta"X purposes of the assets on which tax 
depreciation has been claimed and the net book value of a such asset, offset by the provision for 
employee benefit which is deductible for ta"X purpose only on payment. 

3.3 Events occurring after the repo1iing date 

The materiality of the events occurring after the rep01ting date has been considered and appropriate 
adjustments or disclosures have been made in the Financial Statements where necessary. 

ASSETS AND BASES OF THEIR VALUATION 

3.4 Inventories 

Inventories are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value, after making due allowance for obsolete and 
slow-moving items. Net realizable value is the price at which inventories can be sold in the nom1al course of 
business after allowing for cost of realization and/or cost of conversion from their existing state to saleable 
condition. 

Finished Goods -
Goods in Transit -

3.5 Financial Assets 

At purchase cost on first-in-first-out (FIFO) basis 
At purchase cost 

An entity shall recognise a financial asset or a financial liability only when the Company becomes a party to 
the contractual provisions of the instrument. 
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Nilkamal Eswaran Marketing (Private) Limited 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Year ended 31 March 2025 

3.5.1 Initialmeasurement 

Vlhen a tinancial asset or tinancial liability is recognised initially, the Company shall measure it at the 
transaction price (including transaction costs) unless the anangement constitutes, in effect, a financing 
transaction. A financing transaction may take place in connection with the sale of goods or services, for 
example, if payment is defened beyond nmmal business terms or is financed at a rate of interest that is not a 
market rate. If the anangement constitutes a tinancing transaction, the Company shall measure the tinancial 
asset or financial liability at the present value of the future payments discounted at a market rate of interest 
for a similar debt instrument. 

3.5.2 Subsequent measurement 

At the end of each reporting period, the Company shall measure financial instruments as follows, without 
any deduction for transaction costs the entity may incur on sale or other disposals. 

Debt instruments shall be measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Cash and debt 
instruments that are classified as cunent assets or current liabilities shall be measured at the undiscountecl 
amount of the cash or other consideration expected to be paid or received (i.e., net of impairment) unless the 
arrangement constitutes, in effect, a financing transaction If the arrangement constitutes a financing 
transaction, the entity shall measure the debt instrument at the present value of the future payments 
discounted at a market rate of interest for a similar debt instrument. 

Trade and other receivables 

Trade and other receivables and clue from Related Parties are initially recognized at costs. Trade receivables 
and other receivables are stated at the amounts they are estimated to realize net of impairment for bad and 
doubtful receivables. 

If receivables extend beyond the normal credit tenns, those receivables are measured at amortized cost using 
the effective interest rate at the end of each reporting period. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents are cash in hand, demand deposits and short-term highly liquid investments, 
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand and 
deposits in banks net of outstanding bank overdrafts. 

3.5.3 lmpainnent oftlnancial assets measured at cost OI' amortised cost 

At the end of each reporting period, the Company shall assess whether there is objective evidence of 
impairment of any financial assets that are measured at cost or amortised cost. If there is objective evidence 
of impairment, the entity shall recognize an impairment loss in profit or loss immediately. Objective 
evidence that a financial asset or group of assets is impaired includes observable data that come to the 
attention of the Company about the loss events. 

3.5.3.1 Measurement 

The Company shall measure an impairment loss on financial assets measured at cost or an1ortised cost as the 
difference between the asset's can·ying amount and the present value of estimated cash flows discounted at 
llle d~M;L'~ v1iginlll cffcotivo intoroot ratWJ, Ihw::h :a fimmr.iAl AW'.t hFis 11 vilriahle interl(st rate, the discount rate 
±or measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate determined under the contract. 
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N ilkamal Eswaran Marketing (Private) Limited 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Y em· ended 31 March 2025 

3.5.4 Derecognition of a financial asset 

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows fi·om the financial 
asset expire or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which 
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the 
Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain 
control of the financial asset 

3.6 Impairment of Non-financial assets 

The carrying amounts of the Company's non-financial assets such as deferred tax assets me reviewed at each 
rep01ting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment If any such indication exists, then 
the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. For intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives or that are 
not yet available for use, the recoverable amount is estimated each year at the same time. 

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value 
less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows me discounted to their present 
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and 
the risks specific to the asset For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually 
are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that 
are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets. 

Impainnent losses are recognized in profit or loss. 

LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS 

Liabilities classified as Current Liabilities on the Statement of Financial Position· are those obligations 
payable on demand or within one year fi·om the Statement of Financial Position. Items classified as non­
current liabilities are those obligations, which expire beyond a period of one year from the rep01ting date. 

All !mown liabilities have been accounted for in preparing the Financial Statements. Provisions and 
liabilities are recognized when the Company has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events 
and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. 

3.7 Non-derivative financial liabilities 

The Company initially recognises debt securities issued and subordinated liabilities on the date that they are 
nrie;inAtecl. A 11 other financial liabilities (including liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss) 
are recognised initially on the trade date at which the Company becomes a pmty to the contractual provisions 
ofthc instrument. 

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations me dischmged or cancelled 
or expire. 

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the Statement of Financial Position 
when, m1d only when, the Company has a legal right to offset the amounts and intends either to settle on a 
net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

The non - clerivati ve financial liabilities comprise only with trade and other payables 

Such financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. 
Suust:ttueHllu iuilitllrccognition thcno finanoialliabilitie~ are men5llrArl M mnnrtisecl co~t using the effective 
interest method. 

-ll-



Nilkamal Eswaran Marketing (Private) Limited 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Year ended 31 March 2025 

3.8 Pt·ovisions and liabilities 

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive 
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be 
required to settle the obligation. Provisions are cletenninecl by discounting the expected future cash flows at a 
pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the 
liability. The unwinding of the discount rate is recognised as a finance cost. 

3.9 Contingencies and Capital Commitments 

All material capital commitments and contingencies, which exist as at the reporting elate, are clisclosecl in the 
respective notes to the Financial Statements. 

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

3.10 Revenue Recognition 

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company 
and that revenue and associated costs incurred or to be incurred can be reliably measured. Revenue is 
measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net oftrade discounts and sales ta'\.es. 

The following specific criteria are used for the purpose of recognition of revenue. 

a) Sale of Goods 

Revenue from the sale of goods in the course of ordinary activities is measured at the fair value of the 
consideration received or receivable, net ofretums, trade discounts and volume rebates. 

Revenue is recognized when significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the 
customers, usually on dispatch of the goods. 

b) Othet· Income 

Other income is recognized on an accrual basis. 

Net gains and losses of a revenue nature on the disposal of non-ctment assets are accounted for in the 
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income, having deducted fi·om proceeds on 
disposal, the carrying amount of the assets and related selling expenses. 

Gains and lo~~~~s nrisine tl·om incidental activities to main revenue generating activities and those arising 
from a group of similar transactions which are not material, are aggregated, reported and presented on a 
net basis. 

3.11 Expenditure Recognition 

a) Operating Expenses 

Expenses are recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income on the 
basis of a direct association between the cost incurred and the eaming specific items of income. All 
expenditure incurred in the running of the business and in maintaining the property, plant and equipment 
in a state of efficiency has been charged to the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive 
Income. 
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Nilkamal Eswaran Marketing (Private) Limited 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Year ended 31 March 2025 

b) Finance Income and Expense 

Interest income and expenses are recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest method. The 
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts or payments 
throughout the expected life of the financial asset or liabilities (or, where appropriate, a shorter period) 
to the can-ying amount of the financial asset or liabilities. When calculating the effective interest rate, 
the Company estimates fiJture cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument, 
but not future credit losses. 

The calculation of the effective interest rate includes all transaction costs and fees and points paid or 
received that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. Transaction costs include incremental 
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of a financial asset or liability. 

c) Borrowing cost 

All borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incuned. 

3.12 Related Party Transactions 

Disclosures has been made in respect of the transactions in which one party has the liability to control or 
exercise significant influence over the financial and operating decisions/policies of the other, irrespective of 
a price being charged. 
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Nilkamal Eswaran Marketing (Private) Limited 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Year ended 31 March 2025 

4. REVENUE 2025 2024 
Rs. Rs. 

Sales of Goods 79,711,086 55,852,068 
79,711,086 55,852;068 

5. INVENTORY 2025 2024 

Rs. Rs. 

Fumiture 2,246,776 2,690,649 
Crates 60,244,104 50,644,969 
Local Outsourcing Products 304,830 156,600 

62,795,711 53,492,218 
Less :Provision for slow moving inventories (Note 5.1) (22,761,005) (22,502,756) 

40,034,706 30,989,463 

5.1 Movement in Provision for Slow Moving Inventories 

Balance as at the beginning of the year 22,502,756 22,972,434 
(Reversal) I Provision for the year 258,250 (469,678) 
Balance as at the end of the year 22,761,005 22,502,756 

6. TRADE Al\'D OTHER RECEIVABLES 2025 2024 

Rs. Rs. 

Trade receivables (Note 6.1) 6,134,145 10,775,737 

Refundable Deposit 30,996 39,304 

Advance paid to Nilkamal Ltd - Related Party 425,959 3,363,334 

Advance paid to suppliers other 113,200 
Prepayments 31,658 40,154 

VAT receivables 10,151,787 8,856,010 
16,774,545 23,187,739 

6.1 Trade receivables 2025 2024 

Rs. Rs. 

Tracie Receivables - Other 6,791,974 10,791,553 

Provision for impairment of trade receivables (Note 6.1.1) (657,828) (15,817) 

6,134,145 10,775,737 

6.1.1 Provision for Impairment of Trade Receivables 2025 2024 

Rs. Rs. 

Balance as at the beginning of the year 15,817 8,028 

Provision I (Reversal) during the period 642,012 1,976 

Write off During the period (418) 

Bad debt Written Back 6,231 

Balance as at end of the year 657,828 15,817 
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Nilkamal Eswaran Marketing (Private) Limited 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Year ended 31 March 2025 

7. STATED CAPITAL 

Fully Paid Ordinary Shares 

8. TRADE AND OTHER PA YABLES 

Trade Payable - Other 
Accmed Expenses 

Advances from Customers 

9. RELATEDPARTYPAYABLE 

Nilkamal Eswaran Plastics (Pvt) Ltd 

10. CURRENT TAX PAYABLE 

Balance as at begim1ing of the year 
Payment Made during the year 

For 2024/25 - Self Assessment Paid 
For 2023/24 Payment 
Ovcr/(Under) Provision 
Provision for Cmrent year 
Balance as at end of the period 

Numbc1· 

100 
100 

11. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS IN CASH FLOW STATEMENT 
Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents 

11.1 Favourable Cash and Cash Equivalents Balances 
Cash in hand 
Cash at bank 
REPO investments in Sri Lankan Government Treasmy Bills 
Interest Receivable 

11.2 Unfavourable Cash and Cash Equivalent Balances 
Bank Overdrafts 

2025 

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents for the Purpose of Cash Flow Statement 
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Rs. 

1,000 
1,000 

2024 
Number Rs. 

100 1,000 
100 1,000 

2025 2024 
Rs. Rs. 

62,251 228,172 
2,247,992 910,319 

155,112 304,515 
2,465,356 1,443,007 

2025 2024 
Rs. Rs. 

2,934,871 
2,934,871 

2025 2024 
Rs. Rs. 

3,312,431 2,317,819 

(3,011,106) (2,698,513) 
(3 ,311 ,245) (2,317,820) 

(1, 187) 
6,665,981 6,010,945 
3,654,874 3,312,431 

2025 2024 
Rs. Rs. 

64,112 10,000 
4,412,049 481,001 

36,UlJU,UUO 32,000,000 
124,000 811,111 

40,600,161 33,302,112 

3,154,706 
40,600,161 30,147,406 



Nilkamal Eswaran Marketing (Private) Limited 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Y o;ar ended 31 March 2025 

12. FINANCE INCOME AND FINANCE COST 

12.1 Finance Income 

Interest Income from REPO 

12.2 Finance Cost 

Bank charges 

Overdraft Interest 

Exchange Loss 

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 

Current Income Tax 
Income Liable at 30% (Note 13.1) 

Income Tax Over provision FY 2023/24 
Current Tax Expense 

13.1 Reconciliation of the accounting profit & the income tax expenses 

Profit before Tax 
Other Sources oflncome 
Aggregate disallowable expenses 
Aggregate allowable expenses 

Business Income 

Interest Income 
Investment Income 

Taxable Income 

Liable@ 30% 

14. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 

14.1 Transactions with the Related Parties 

Compnny Name 

Nilkamal Limited 

Nilkamal Eswaran Plastic (Pvt) Ltd 

Good Value Eswaran (Pvt) Ltd 

Eswaran Brothers Expmt Pvt Ltd 

Relationship Nature of Transaction 

Ultimate Parent Purchase of Goods 

Immediate Parent Net fund transfer to/( from) Plastic 
Dues of the company settled to NEPPL 

Dues ofNEPPL settled to the Company 

Affiliate Company Sales 
Settlements 

Affiliate Company Sales 
Settlements 
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2025 2024 
Rs. Rs. 

2,612,037 3,282,485 
2,612,037 3,282,485 

234,325 96,350 

15,525 28,558 

13,719 
263,569 124,908 

2025 2024 

Rs. Rs. 

6,665,981 6,010,945 
{1,187) 

6,664,794 6,010,945 

2025 2024 

Rs. Rs. 

21,319,675 20,494,417 

(2,612,037) (3,282,485) 

900,261 12,162 
(470,097) 

19,607,899 16,753,997 

2,612,037 3,282,485 

2,612,037 3,282,485 

22,219,937 20,036,482 

6,665,981 6,010,945 
6,665,981 6,010,945 

Transaction Amount 
2025 2024 

R~. 

26,002,462 

(35,498,003) 

(2,902, 745) 

5,837,617 

38,000 
(38,000) 

58,646 
(58,646) 

Us. 

29,342,266 
(29,861,003) 

14,684,181 
(12,749,669) 

1,000,359 
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Nilkamal Eswaran Marketing (Private) Limited 
DETAILED INCOME STATEMENT 
Year ended 31 March 2025 

2025 2024 

Statement Rs. Rs. 

Revenue 79,711,086 55,852,068 

Less: Cost of Sales 
Cost Of Goods Sold (58,089,593) (37,091,585) 

Gross Profit 21,621,493 18,760,483 

Expenses: 

Administrative Expenses II (615,513) (1, 170,084) 

Distribution Expenses III (2,034, 773) (253,559) 

(2,650,286) (1,423,643) 

Profit from Opemtions 18,971,207 17,336,840 



Nilkamal Eswaran Marketing (Private) Limited 
DETAILED INCOME STATEMENT 
Y car ended 31 March 2025 

STATEMENT I 

Cost Of Goods Sold 

Opening stock 
Provision for Slow Moving Stocks (Expense) 

Purchases 
Closing Stock 

STATEMENT II 

Administrative Expenses 

Legal & Consultancy Fees 

Audit Fcc 
Container Washing Charges 

Insurance Charges 

License Charges 

Refundable Deposit Write Off 
Postage/stamp/courier/Printing 
Secretarial Fees 

Stamp duty 

STATEMENT III 

Distribution Expenses 

Tender Expenses 

Promotion & Events 

Sales Incentive - CRATES 
Sales Jnccntivc Furniture 
Sales Commission Daraz/On line sales 

Provision for Bad Debts 

VAT on Free Issues & Sample Issues 
Written OtT Unclaimed VAT 8% 

'l'ranspo1i 
Field sales expenses 

Written Off Unclaimed VAT 15% 

Unloading Expenses - Local Fumiture 

2025 2024 
Rs. Rs. 

53,492,218 44,692,550 

258,250 (469,678) 

67,134,836 46,360,931 

(62,795,711) (53,492,218) 

58,089,593 37,091,585 

2025 2024 
Rs. Rs. 

332,510 

330,000 536,123 

4,487 11,054 

62,970 60,009 
71,300 

19,304 
10,200 1,350 

181,002 154,513 

7,550 3,225 

615,513 1,170,084 

2025 2024 
Rs. Rs. 

257,415 
1,483 

6,521 5,262 

100,104 (94,888) 

253,006 2,413 

642,012 1,976 

2,694 1,562 

5,319 3,955 

758,516 323,735 
8,060 

587 
8,600 

2,034,773 253,559 
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Shape the future 
with confidence 

NYR/DSM/DM 

Ernst & Younq 
Chartered Accountants 
Rotunda Towers 
No. 109, Galle Road 
P.O. Box 101 
Colombo Cj3, Sd Lanka 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Tel: +94 l1 246 3500 
Fax: +94 11 768 7869 
Email: eysl@lk.ey.com 
ey.com 

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF N!LKAMAL ESWARAN PLASTICS (PRIVATE) LIMITED 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of Nilkamal Eswaran Plastics (Private) Limited ("the Company") 
and the consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary (''the Group") which comprise 
the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2025, and the statement of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity, cash flow statement for tbe year then ended, and 
notes to the financial statements including a summary of significant accounting policies. 

In our opinion, the accompanying Financiai Statements o1' the Company and the Group give a true and fair 
view of the financial position of the Company and the Group as at 31 March 2025 and of its financial 
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting 
Standards for Small and Medium-sized Entities (SLFRS for SMEs). 

Basis for opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards (SLAuSs). Our responsibilities 
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the Financial 
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company and the Group in accordance with 
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (Code of Ethics) and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial statements 

The Management is responsible for U1e preparation of Financial Statements that give a true and fair view 
in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards for Small and Medium-sized Entities (SLFRS for SMEs), 
and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of 
Financial Stateme·nts that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the Financial Statements, the Management is responsible for assessing the Company's and 
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate 
the Company or the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's and the Group's financial 
reporting process. 

(Contd ... 2/) 

Partners; C I< llu~u:1gamuwa FCP. FCMA LLB (Londor). A P A Cunasf.'lv.=n:~ fCA fCMA, Ms. Y A De Silva FCA, M~, G G S Manatunga fCA, W l< B S P Fernando FCA FCMA FCCA, BE Wijesurlya ~CA FCMA, 
aNd~ Saram ACA F"CMA, Ms. N A De Silva FCA, N M Suloiman H..:.A. rCMA, M~, L K H L Fonseka FCA, Ms .. P V K N Sajeewani FCA, A A J R Perera FCA ACMA, NY R L Fernando ACA, D N Gomaoe /'.CA ACMA, 
C A Ya!agala ACA ACMA, Ms, P S Paranavitone ACP.. ACMA LLB (ColomtJO), e Vasanthan ACA ACMA, W 0 P l Perera ACA 



Shape the future 
with confidence 

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with SLAuSs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material If, Individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 
basis of these Financial Statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SLAuSs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

" Identify and assess the risl~s of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due 
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. Tr1e risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override 
of internal control. 

" Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's and the Group's internal control. 

" Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's and the Group's ability to continue 
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the Financial Statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions 
may cause the Company and the Group to cease to continue as a going concern. 

" Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate w1th tllOse charQed with govi:OttldllU::! regarding, among other mJttors, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 
control that we identify during our audit. 

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements 

As required by section 163 (2) of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007, we have obtained all the information 
and explanations that were required for the audit and, as far as appears from our examination, proper 
accounting records have been kept by the Company. 

r 
\ / . ,,....,/". 
\,:•~) ".._{"' A 

·-· ;?, . •"*'\! ~ \ 0 f /V)~ 
'"" 

09 May 2025 
Colombo 



}-.Jilkamal Eswaran Plastics (Private) Limited 
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS & OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
Y car ended 31 March 2025 

Notes Group Company 
2025 2024 2025 2024 
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. 

Revenue 3 1,673,919,509 1,102,802,823 I ,594,208,424 1,046,950,755 

Cost of sales (906, 702,827) (664,861,264) (848,613,233) (627,769,680) 

Gross Profit 767,216,683 437,941,560 745,595,190 419,181,075 

Other income 4 25,641,699 17,972,094 25,641,699 17,972,094 

Administrative expenses (102,519,730) (90,529,467) (101,904,217) (89,359,383) 

Distribution expenses (233,493,025) (154,767,914) (231,458,252) (154,514,355) 

.Profit from Operations 456,845,626 210,616,273 437,874,421 193,279,431 

Finance Income 5 56,232,710 63,809,133 53,620,673 60,526,648 

Finance Cost 6 (1,954,304) (1, 783, 706) (1,690,736) (1,658,798) 

.Profit Before Taxation 511,124,032 272,641,700 489,804,358 252,147,282 

Income tax expense 7 (144,379,206) (79,068,559) (137, 714,413) (73,057,614) 

Prom for the Year 366,744,827 193,573,141 352,089,945 179,089,668 
~-

Otbe•· Comprehensive Income for the Year 

Total Compnlhensive Income for the Year 366,744,827 193;573, 141 352,089,945 179,089,668 - "" 

Basic J<:arnings per Share (Rs.) s 232.29 122.61 223.01 113.43 

Tht: w.:t:uunting policies and notes on pages 07 through 27 form un integral part of the financial statements. 



.Nill~amal Eswaran Plastics (Private) Limited 
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
As at 31 March 2025 

Notes 

ASSETS 
Non-Current Assets 
Property, plant and equipment 9 
Intangible assets 10 
Investment in subsidiary 11 
Other financial assets 12 
Total Non-Current Assets 

Cm-n:nt Asst~ts 
Inventories 13 
Trade and other receivables 14 
Cash and cash equivalents 15.1 
Total Current Assets 
Total Assets 

EQVIT\' & LLI\BILITIES 
Equity 
StBted capital 16 
Retained eamings 

Total Equity 

Non··Current Liabilities 
Deferred ta.xation 7.2 
Ernployee benefits 17 
Total Non Current Liabilities 

Current Liabilities 

Trade and other payables 18 

Related party payables 19 
Bank Overdraft 15.2 
CunentTax 24 
Total Cnrl'ent Lh1bilities 

Total Liabilities 
Total Equity and Uabilitics 

Group Company 
2025 2024 2025 2024 
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. 

128,528,762 150,944,981 128,528,762 150,944,981 
1,265,569 1,077,843 1,265,569 1,077,843 

1,000 1,000 
55,531,388 67,198,260 55,531,388 67,198,260 

185,325,719 219,221,084 185,326,719 219,222,084 __ 

244,486,772 236,134,962 204,452,069 205,145,499 
250,965,410 220,104,064 234,190,866 199,851,193 
840,928,995 513,381,411 800,328,834 - 480,079,299 

1,336,381,177 969,620,437 1,238,971,769 885,075,991 
1,521,706,896 1,188,&41 ,521 1,424,298,488 1,104,298,075 

20,000,000 20,000,000 20,000,000 20,000,000 
1,238, 781,704 972,053,858 1,147,493,523 895,420,558 
1,258,781,704 992,053,858 1,167,493,523 915,420,558 

9,373,468 16,498,308 9,373,468 16,498,308 
47,370,680 40,289,992 47,370,680 40,289,992 
56,744,148 56,788,300 56,744,148 56,788,300 

75,649,149 74,703,366 73,183,794 73,260,357 

2,989,188 2,237,286 2,989,188 2,237,286 

2,242,710 3,154,706 2,242,710 

125,299,996 59,904,005 ~§45,122 56,591,574 

206,181,043 139,999,363 200,060,814 .. -~12._ 
262,925,191 196,787,663 256,804,963 188,877,517 

1,521,706,896 1,188,841,521 1,424,298,488 1,104,298,075 
....... -

These Financial Statements have been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act No 07 of 2007. 

The Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the Financial Statements. 

Signed for and on behalf of the Board: 

111e accounting policies and notes on pages 07 through 27 form an integral part of the financial statements. 



STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
Year ended 31 March 2025 

GROUP Stated Retained Total 
Capital Earnings 

Rs. Rs. Rs. 

Balance as at 1 April2023 20,000,000 828,480,717 848,480,717 

Profit for the year 193,573,141 193,573,141 

Final Dividend 2022/23 (20,000,000) (20,000,000) 

Interim Dividend 2023/24 (30,000,000) (30,000,000) 

Balance as at 31 March 2024 20,000,000 972,053,858 992,053,858 

Profit for the year 366,744,826 366,744,826 

Interim Dividend 2023/24 (100,016,980) (100,016,980) 

Balance as at 31 March 2025 20,000,000 1,238,781,704 1 ,25 8, 781 '704 

COMPANY Stated Retained Total 

Capital Earnings 

Rs. Rs. Rs. 

Bal:m.ce as at 1 April2023 20,000,000 766,330,890 786,330,890 

Profit tor the year 179,089,669 179,089,669 

Final Dividend 2022/23 (20,000,000) (20,000,000) 

Interim Dividend 2023/24 (30,000,000) (30,000,000) 

-Ba.lance as at 31 March 2024 20,000,000 895,420,558 915,420,558 

Profit tor the year 352,089,945 352,089,945 

Interim Dividend 2024/25 (100,016,980) (100,016,980) 

Balance as at 31 March 2025 20,000,000 . 1,147,493,523 I, 167,493,523 ·- -

The accounting policies and notes on pages 07 through 27 fonn an integral part of the financial statements. 



Nilkamal Eswaran Plastics (Private) Limited 
CASH FLOW STATEMENT 
Year ended 11 MHrch 2025 

Note£ Group Company 
2025 2024 2025 2024 
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities 
Profit before Tax 511,124,032 272,641,700 489,804,358 252,147,282 

Profit Before Taxation 
Adjustment for: 

Depreciation on property, plant & equipment 9 28,791,533 35,184,8.51 28,791,533 35,184,851 
Amortisation of intangible assets 11 287,915 145,864 287,915 145,864 
Provision for gratuity 17 12,627,842 13,192,741 12,627,842 13,192,741 
Provision for inventories 13 (8,451,209) 3,592,647 (8,709,459) 4,062,325 
Provision/(reversal) for impairment of trade receivables 3,323,279 803,429 2,681,267 801,451 
(Prollt)/Loss on disposal of property, plant & equipment 93,067 (2,912,035) 93,067 (2,912,035) 
Gain on disposal of shares (16,299,264) (2,624,702) ( 16,299,264) (2,624,702) 
Interest income 5 (56,232,710) (63,809,133) (53,620,673) (60,526,648) 
Dividend Jncornc (2,348,53 7) (I ,367,000) (2,348,537) (1,367,000) 
Other Interest expense 6 235,586 354,648 220,061 326,090 
Fair Value Gain on Shares (4,646,048) (7,518,753) ( 4,646,048) (7,518,753). 

---·468,505,484 247,684,257 448,882,060 230,911,466 

(Increase)/ Decrease in inventoiies 99,398 1,525,309 9,402,890 10,324,977 
(Increase)/ Decrease in trade and other receivables (33,201 ,806) (79,140,521) (36,038,119) (69,018,291) 
Increase (Decrease) in trade and other payables 945,786 28,645,754 (76,563) 28,016,910 
lncreasc/ (Decrease) in related party payables 751,902 508,740 751,902 508,740 

Cash Gene1·ated from Operations 437,100,764 210,733,955 422,922,170 200,743,802 

Employee benefit paid (5,547,154) (4,612,361) (5,547,154) (4,612,361) 
lnterest paid 6 (235,586) (354,648) (220,061) (326,090) 
Current tax paid (86,1!7,381) (48,945,435) (79,795,028) (43,929,102) 

:'\t;t Ca§h Flow Generated from Operating Activities 345,200,644 156,821,551 337,359,928 151,876,248 

Cash Flows from Investing Acti\'itics 

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment 9 (6,468,380) (10,337, 188) (6,468,380) (10,337, 188) 
Acquisition of intangible assets ll (475,641) (951,049) (475,641) (951,049) 
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 3,311,866 3,311,866 
Interest received 5 55,259,224 63,809,133 52,647,187 60,526,648 
Dividend Received 2,113,689 2,546,351 2,113,689 2,546,351 
Jnvestment in equity instruments (42,897,726) (42,524,260) (42,897,726) (41,534,611) 

Disposal of Shares 75,744,749 9,153,816 75,744,749 9,153,816 
Net Cash Flow used in Investing Activities 83,275,915 25,008,670 80,663,878 -- 22,715~34 

Cash Flows from Financing Activities 
Dividends paid (100,01(,,9!10) (50,000,000) (100,016,<lRO) ('iO,OOO,OOO) 

Net Cash Flow used in Financing Activities (1 00,016,980) (50,000,000) (1 00,0 16,980) (50,000,000) 

Net Decrease in Cash & Cash Equivalents 328,459,579 120,130,053 318,006,826 124,592,082 
Cash & cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 15 510,226,705 390,096,652 480,079,299 355,487,217 

Cash & Cash Equivalents at the End of the Year 15 838,686,286 510,226,705 798,086,125 480,079,299 

The accounting policies and notes on pages 07 through 27 form an integral part of the financial statements. 



Nilkamal Eswaran Plastics (Private) Limited 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Year ended 31 March 2025 

L REPORTING ENTITY 

L1 Domicile and Legal Form 

Nilkamal Eswaran Plastics (Private) Limited ('the Company') is a limited liability company incorporated in 
and domiciled in Sri Lanka. The registered office of the Company and the principal place of business is located 
at 328, Madapatha Road, BataJ::ettera, Piliyandala. 

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group as at and the year ended 31 March 2025 comprise the 
Company and its subsidiary (together referred to as the "Group" and individually as "Group entities"). The 
Company has a fully owned subsidiary, Nilkamal Eswaran Marketing (Private) Limited. 

L2 Principal Activities and Nature of Operations 

111e principal activities ofthe Group were as follows; 

Nilkamal Eswaran Plastics (Pvt) Ltd 

Nilkamal Eswaran Marketing (Pvt) Ltd 

1.3 Parent Entity and Ultimate Parent Entity 

Manufacturing of injection molded plastic articles 
and sofa 
Importing and selling of all kinds of plastics articles 

The Group's parent entity and ultimate parent entity is Nilkamal Limited, which is incorporated in India. 

1.4 Date of Authorization for Issue 

The Financial Statements of the Company and the Group for the year ended 31 March 2025 was authorized 
for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors on 09 May 2025. 



~ilkamal Eswaran Plastics (Private) Limited 
NOTES--To THE FINANCiAL--STATE=-=M-.E=-N_T_S-----···-------··--------··-----·····----··--·-·------·····--··--·-··--
Year ended 31 March 2025 

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 

2.1 Statement of Compliance 

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group and the separate Financial Statements of the Company, 
which comprise the Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or Loss and Comprehensive Income, 
Changes in Equity and Cash Flows together with accounting policies and notes to the Financial Statements of 
the Company and Group as at 31 March 2025 and for the year then ended have been prepared in accordance 
with Sri Lanka Accounting Standard for Small and Medium Sized- Entities (SLFRS for SMEs), issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka (ICASL) and comply with the requirements of Companies 
Act, No.7 of2007 and amendments thereto. 

2.2 Basis of Measurement 

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis and applied consistently 
with no adjustments being made for inflationary factors affecting the Financial Statements, except for the 
retirement benefit liability for employee benefits recognized based on the Gratuity Act, in the Statement of 
Financial Position. 

These Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on the basis that the Group would continue as a 
going concern for the foreseeable future. 

2.2 Comparative Figures 

Where necessary, comparative figures have been rearranged to conform with the current year's presentation. 

2.3 Functional and Presentation Currency 

All values presented in the Financial Statements are in Sri Lankan Rupees (Rs.) unless otherwise indicated. 

2.4 Use of Estimate and Judgment 

TI1e preparation of the Financial Statements in conformity with SLFRS for SMEs requires management to 
make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported 
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates 
are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected. 

Information about critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on 
the amounts recognised in the Financial Statements is included in the following notes: 

• Impainnent of financial assets (Note 3.9.4) 
• Impairment ofNon-fmancial assets (Note 3.10) 
• CU1Tent taxation (Note 3.3) 
® Deferred taxation and utilization of tax losses (Note 3.3.b) 
• Measurement ofEmployee benefits (Note 3.11) 
o Provisions and contingencies (Note 3.13 and Note 3.14) 



Nilkamal Eswaran Plastics (Private) Limited 
Noi~Eis";fcs·::rw£i51NANcil\I"sfAr:Ei1ifNrs··~·····-------··""·------····--·~------·--·· 
Year ended 31 March 2025 

2.5 Materiality and Aggregation 

Each material class of similar items is presented separately in the Financial Statements. Items of a dissimilar 
nature or function are presented separately unless they are immaterial. 

:U SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

2.6.1 Basis of Consolidation 

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these Financial 
Statements, unless otherwise indicated. The accounting policies have been applied consistently by the Group. 

Subsidiaries 

Subsidiaries are those enterprises controlled by the Company. Control exists when the Company has the power, 
directly or indirectly, to govern the financial and operating policies of that enterprise so as to obtain benefits 
from its activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights that presently are exercisable are taken into 
account. TI1e Financial Statements of subsidiary is included in the Consolidated Financial Statements from the 
date that control effectively commences until the date that control effectively ceases. Accounting policies of 
subsidiaries have been changed when necessary to align them with the policies adopted by the Company. 

All companies in the Group have a common fmancia! year, which ends on 31 March. 

Loss of Control 

Upon the loss of control, the Group derecognises the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, any non-controlling 
interests and the other components of equity related to the subsidiary. Any surplus or deficit arising on the loss 
of control is recognised in profit or loss. If the Group retains any interest in the previous subsidiary, then such 
interest is measured at fair value at the date that control is lost. Subsequently it is accounted for as an equity­
accmmted investee or in accordance with the Group's Accmmting Policy for fmancial assets (see Accounting 
Policy 3.9 below) depending on the level of influence retained. 

Transactions eliminated on consolidation 

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealized gains and losses or income and expenses arising 
from the intra-group transactions are eliminated in preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements. 

Accounting for investment in subsidiaries 

When separate Financial Statements are prepared, investments in subsidiaries are accounted for using the cost 
method. Investments in subsidiaries are stated in the Company's Statement of Financial Position at cost less 
accumulated impairment losses. 

2.6.2 Foreign Currency Transactions 

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currency at the exchange rates at the dates 
of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are 
retranslated to the functional cunency at the exchange rate at that date. 

111e foreign cmrency gain or loss on monetary items is the difference between amortised cost in the functional 
cunency at the beginning ofthe period, adjusted for eftective interest aml payments during the period, and the 
mnmii Q&t in foreign currency translated at the exchange rate at the end of the reporting period. 

() 



Nilkamal Eswaran Plastics (Private) Limited 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Year ended 31 March 2025 

----------------

Foreign cunency differences arising on retranslation are recognised in profit or loss. Non-monetary items that 
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign cunency are translated using the exchange rate at the date 
of the transaction. 

2.6.3 Income Tax Expense 

Income tax expenses comprise of cunent & deferred tax expenses recognized in the Statement of Profit or 
Loss and Other Comprehensive Income. 

(a) Cunent Taxation 

The Group's liability to taxation has been computed in accordance with the provisions of the Inland Revenue 
Act No 10 of 2006 and amendments thereto before l April 2018. After 1 April 2018, the Group's liability to 
taxation has been computed in accordance with the provisions of the Inland Revenue Act No. 24 of 2017 and 
subsequent gazette notifications. 

(b) Deferred Taxation 

Defened tax is recognised in respect of all temporary differences as at the reporting date between the tax bases 
of assets and liabilities and their respective canying amounts for fmancial rep01ting purposes. The balance in 
the defened taxation account represents income tax applicable to the difference between the written down 
values for tax purpose of the assets on which tax depreciation has been claimed and the net book value of such 
asset, offset by the provision for employee benefit which is deductible for tax purpose only on payment. 

Defened tax assets, including those related to temporary tax effect of income tax losses and credits available 
to be canied forward are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be 
available against which the assets can be utilized. Defened tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and 
are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized. 

2.7 Property, Plant and Equipment 

a) Cost and Valuation 

Property, plant & equipment are canied at cost less accumulated depreciation, less accumulated impainnent 
losses if any. 

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self"constmcted 
assets includes the cost of materials and direct labor, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to a 
working condition for its intended use, and the costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on 
which they are located. Where an item of property, plant and equipment comprises major components having 
different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items of property, plant and equipment 

Items of property, plant and equipment are derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits 
are expected from its use. Any gain or losses rising on de-recognition of the asset is included in profit or loss 
in the year the asset is derecognized. 

b) Subsequent Cost 

Expenditure incuned to replace a component of an item of property, plant and equipment that is accounted for 
separately, including major inspection and overhaul costs, is capitalised. Other subsequent expenditure is 
capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the item of property, plant and 
equipment. All other expenditure is recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive 
lncom~ as an expense as i11cuncd. 

_JfL 



_.!~~~lkamal Eswaran Plastics (Private) Limited 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Year ended 31 March 2025 

c) Depreciation 

!he provision. for depreciation is calculated by using straight line method on all property, plant and equipment 
m order to wnte off such amounts over the following estimated useful economic lives by equal installments. 

Buildings on Freehold Land 
Plant and Machinery 
Moulds 
Office Equipment 
Computer Equipment and Software 
Furniture and Fittings 
Motor Vehicles 

Freehold land is not depreciated. 

20 years 
9.67 years 
6.17 years 

5 years 
5 years 

10 years 
5 years 

Depreciation of an asset begins when it is available for use, i.e. when it is in the location and condition 
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Depreciation of an asset 
ceases at the earlier of the date that the asset is classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that 
is classified as held for sale) and the date that the asset is derecognized. 

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each 
reporting period. 

d) Impairment of Property Plant and Equipment 

The canying value of property plant and equipment is reviewed for impairment when events or changes in 
circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists and where the 
canying value exceed the estimated recoverable amount, the assets are written down to their recoverable 
amount. Impainnent losses are recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income 
unless it reverses a previous revaluation surplus for the same asset. 

2.8 Intangible Assets 

All computer software costs incuned, licensed for use by the Group, which are not integrally related to 
associate hardware, and can be cleal'ly identified, reliably measured and it is probable that they will lead to 
future economic benefits are included in the Statement of Financial Position under the category Intangible 
Assets and carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses if any. 

a)Subsequent Expenditure 

Expenditure incuiTed on intangible assets are capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits 
embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditUre is expensed as incurred. 

b)Amortization 

Intangible assets are amortized on a straight line basis over a period of 5 years except goodwill in the Statement 
of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income from the date when the asset is available for use, over the 
best estimate of its useful economic life. 

11 



-~il~amal Eswaran Plastics (Private) Limited 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIA7L~ST=-'A':-:T=E=-M-=E=N-=T=-s---------,-­
Year ended 31 March 2025 

2.9 Leased assets 

Leased in tenns of which the Group assumes substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership are 
classified as finance leases. On initial recognition, the leased asset is measured at an amount equal to the lower 
of its .fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payments. Subsequent to initial recognition, the 
asset 1s accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy applicable to property, plant and equipment. 

Other leases are operating leases and are not recognized in the Group's Statement of Financial Position. 

2.10 Inventories 

Inventories are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value, after making due allowance for obsolete and 
slow moving items. Net realizable value is the price at which inventories can be sold in the normal course of 
business after allowing for cost of realization and/or cost of conversion from their existing state to saleable 
condition. 

Raw Materials 

Finished Goods 

Work in Progress 

Consumables and Spares 

Goods in Transit 

2.11 Financial Assets 

At actual cost on first-in first-out (FIFO) basis 

At the cost of direct materials, direct labor and an appropriate 
proportion of fixed production overheads based on nomml 
operating capacity 

based on the standard costing which included all direct 
expenditure and production overheads 

At purchase cost on first-in first-out (FIFO) basis 

At purchase cost 

A financial instrument is a contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a fmancialliability or 
equity instrument of another entity. 

2.1 Ll Initial recognition of financial assets and liabilities 

Au entity 3hull racogniEe a fm::mr.illl »Rset or a fmancialliability only when the entity becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the instrument. 

2.11.2 Initial measurement 

When a fmancial asset or fmancialliability is recognised initially, an entity shall measure it at the transaction 
price (including transaction costs) unless the arrangement constitutes, in effect, a financing transaction. A 
financing transaction may take place in connection with the sale of goods or services, for example, if payment 
is deferred beyond normal business terms or is fmanced at a rate of interest that is not a market rate. If the 
aJTangement constitutes a financing transaction, the entity shall measure the financial asset or financial liability 
at the present value of the future payments discounted at a market rate of interest for a similar debt instrument. 



Nilkamal Eswaran Plastics Limited 
TO TBE FfNANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Year ended 31 March 2025 

2.11.3 Subsequent measurement 

At the end of each reporting period, an entity shall measure fmancial instruments as follows, without any 
deduction for transaction costs the entity may incur on sale or other disposal. 

Debt instruments shall be measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Cash and debt 
instruments that are classified as cunent assets or current liabilities shall be measured at the undiscounted 
amount of the cash or other consideration expected to be paid or received (i.e., net of impainnent) unless 
the arrangement constitutes, in effect, a financing transaction If the arrangement constitutes a financing 
transaction, the entity shall measure the debt instrument at the present value of the future payments 
discounted at a market rate of interest for a similar debt instrument. 

Investments in shares shall be measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. 
For shares traded in an active market the best evidence of fair value is the quoted price for those shares in 
that active market. 

2.12.4 Trade and other receivables 

Trade and otb.er receivables and due from related parties are initially recognized at cost. Trade receivable and 
other receivables are stated at the amounts they are estimated to realize net of impairment for bad and doubtful 
receivables. 

If receivables extend beyond the normal credit tenns, those receivables are measured at amortized cost using 
the effective interest rate at the end of each reporting period. 

2.12.5 Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents are cash in hand, demand deposits and short-term highly liquid investments, readily 
convertible to known amounts of cash and subject to insignificant risk of changes in value. 

For the purpose of Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand and deposits in 
banks net of outstanding bank overdrafts. Investments with short maturities i.e. three months or less from the 
date of acquisition are also treated as cash equivalents. 

:2.12.6 Impairment off1mmcial assets measured at cost or amortised cost 

At the end of each reporting period, an entity shall assess whether there is objective evidence of impairment 
of any financial assets that are measured at cost or am01tised cost. If there is objective evidence ofimpainnent, 
the entity shall recognize an impairment loss in profit or loss immediately. Objective evidence that a financial 
asset or group of assets is in1paired includes observable data that come to the attention of the entity about the 
loss events. 

2.12.6.1 Measurement 

Tbe Group measure an impaitment loss on financial assets measured at cost or amortised cost as the ditTerence 
between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated cash flows discounted at the asset's 
original effective interest rate. If such a financial asset has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for 
measuring any impairment loss IS the current ef'l'ecllv~ lnl~rest. 1 ale uetellnincd tmdcr tho contract, 



TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Year ended 31 March 2025 

2.12. 7 De recognition of a iinancial asset 

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset 
expire or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash f1ows in a transaction in which substantially all 
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transfened or in which the Group neither transfers 
nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the fmancial asset. 

2.13 Impairment of Non= financial assets 

The carrying amounts of the Company's non-fmancial assets such as deferred tax assets are reviewed at each 
reporting date to detennine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then 
the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. For intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives or that are 
not yet available for use, the recoverable amount is estimated each year at the same time. 

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value 
less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash t1ows are discounted to their present value 
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks 
specific to the asset. For the purpose ofimpainnent testing, assets that callllot be tested individually are grouped 
together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely 
independent of the cash inflows of other assets. 

Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. 

2.14 Employee benefits 

(a) Detined Contribution Plan- Employees' Provident Fund & Employees' Trust Fund 

A defmed contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions 
into an approved Employees' Provident Fund and to the Employees' Trust Fund, and will have no legal or 
constructive obligation to pay further amounts. The Group contributes 12% and 3% of gross emoluments of 
employees as Provident Fund and Trust Fund contribution respectively. 

(b) Defined Benefit Plans- Retirement Gratuity 

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defmed contribution plan. 

Provision has been made for retirement gratuities from the first year of service for all employees, in confmmity 
with SLFRS for SMEs (Section 28- Employee Benet1ts). The liability recognised in the Financial Statements 
in respect of def'med benefit plans is the present value of the deflned bene!il ubli.galiun as at the reporting dato. 
The computation of the provision is based only on Gratuity Act requirement. The Group measures the present 
value of retirement benefits of gratuity using an internally generated model based on formula annually. 
Hovvever, under the Payment of Gratuity Act No. 12 of 1983, the liability to an employee arises only on 
completion of 5 years of continued service. 

The liability is not externally fimded nor actuarially valued. 

2.15 Non-derivative financial liabilities 

The Group initially recognises debt securities issued and subordinated liabilities on the date that they are 
originated. All other fmancialliabilities (including liabilities designated at fair value through profit or Joss) are 
recognised initially on the trade date at which the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instrument. 

guises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or 

'A 
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Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the Statement of Financial Position 
when, and only when, the Group has a legal right to offset the amounts and intends either to settle on a net 
basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

The Group has the following non-derivative fmancialliabilities: loans and borrowings, bank overdrafts, and 
trade and other payables, 

Such financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. 
Subsequent to initial recognition these 11nancialliabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective 
interest method. 

Trade payables 

Trade payables are obligations on the basis of nonnal credit terms and do not bear inter.est Trade payables 
denominated in a foreign currency are tTanslated into Sri Lankan rupees using the exchange rate at the reporting 
date. Foreign exchange gains or losses are included in other income. 

2.16 Provisions and liabilities 

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or constmctive obligation 
that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle 
the obligation. Provisions are detennined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that 
reflects cunent market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The 
unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost. 

Provision fol' Warrantee Liability 

111e Company offers wananties on Sofa products on its own account and warranty is provided by giving a 
warranty period of 1 year from the date of sale for the fabric and 15 years from the date of sale for the frame. 
A provision for wananty is recognised when the underlying products are sold, 1he quantum of the provision 
is based on the historical experience. Tiw said extended warranty provision will be reversed upon expiration 
ofwm1·anty period ifunutilised as at that date. 

The provision is included under other liabilities. 

2.17 Revenue Recognition 

ReveHue is 1eeugulL.eLllo the extent that it is probable that tho economic benefits will flow to the Group and 
that revenue and associated costs incurred or to be incuned can be reliably measured, Revenue is measured at 
the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of trade discounts and sales taxes and after 
eliminating sales within the Group. 

·n1e follcnving speci11c criteria are used for the purpose of recognition of revenue. 

(a) Sale of Goods 

Revenue from the sale of goods in the course of ordinary activities is measured at the fair value of the 
consideration received or receivable, net ofretums, trade discounts and volume rebates. 

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when the signi11cant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods 
have passed to the buyer normally at the point of good dispatch; with the Group retaining neither continuing 
managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership, nor effective control over the goods 
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(b) Others 

Other income is recognized on an accrual basis. 

Net gains and losses of a revenue nature on the disposal of property, plant & equipment and other non-current 
assets including investments are accounted for in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive 
Income, having deducted from proceeds on disposal, the carrying amount of the assets and related selling 
expenses. 

Gains and losses arising from incidental activities to main revenue generating activities and those arising from 
a group of similar transactions which are not material, are aggregated, reported and presented on a net basis. 

2.18 Expenditure Recognition 

(a) Operating Expenses 

Expenses are recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income on the basis of 
a direct association between the cost incurred and the earning specific items of income. All expenditure 
.incuned in the ru1ming of the business and in maintaining the property, plant and equipment in a state of 
efficiency has been charged to the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income. 

(b) Finance income and expense 

Interest income and expenses are recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest method. The effective 
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts or payments through the 
expected life of the financial asset or liabilities (or, where appropriate, a shorter period) to the canying amOtmt 
of the financial asset or liabilities. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates future cash 
t1ows considering all contractual terms of the financial instnunent, but not future credit losses. 

The calculation of the effective interest rate includes all transaction costs and fees and points paid or received 
that are an integral part of the effective interest i·ate. Transaction costs include incremental costs that are 
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of a fmancial asset or liability. 

(c) Borrowing cost 

All borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. 

2.19 Related Party Transactions 

Disclosures has been made in respect of the transactions in which one party has the liability to control or 
exercise significant influence over the financial and operating decisions/policies of the other, inespective of a 
price being charged. 

2.20 Statement of Cash Flows 

The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared using the" Indirect Method" in accordance with LKAS 7 " 
statement of Cash Flows". 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise short tenn, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known 
amounts of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. The cash and cash equivalents 
include cash in hand, balances with banks and short term deposits with banks. 

Interest paid is classified as operating cash flows, interest received are classified as investing cash flows, while 
dividends paid are classified as financing cash flows for the purpose of presenting the statement of cash flows . 

. I"·-
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Local Sales 
Less:Trade Discounts 

,4, OTHER INCOME 

(Gain) I Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 
Interest on staffloan 
Scrap sales 
Mould Lease Income 
Dividend Income 
Fair Value Gain on Shares 
Profit on Disposal of shares 

;i, FINANCE INCOME 

Interest income from investment in securities Purchased lmder Resale 
Interest Income from Fixed Deposit 
Interest Income from Mutual Funds (CAL securities) 
Exchange Gain 

6. FINANCE COST 

(3 ank charges 
Exchange gain/loss 
Interest on short tem1 borrowings 
Interest on distributor cash deposit 

7. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 

Curn:nt Income Tax 
Current Income tax charge (Note 7.1) 
Over Provision in Respect of Prior Years 

Deferred Tax Expenses /(Income) 
Deferred Income Tax Charge I (Reversal) (Note 7.2) 
Income Tax expense recorded in the Stnte111ent of Profit or Loss 

2025 
Rs. 

Group 
2024 
Rs. 

2025 
Rs. 

Company 

2024 
Rs. 

1,674,079,201 1,106,494,198 1,594,368,116 1,050,642,130 
(159,692) (3,691,374) (159,692) (3,691,374) 

~73;919,509"" -iTo2,802:s23'"]J94,208,424 ~= 

2025 
Rs. 

Group 

(93,067) 
544,871 

1,776,844 
119,200 

2,348,537 
4,646,048 

16,299,264 

2024 
R~. 

2025 
R~. 

Com[J:uty 

2024 
Rs. 

2,912,035 (93,067) 2,912,035 
535,894 544,871 535,894 

1,493,366 1,776,844 1,493,366 
1,520,344 119,200 1,520,344 
1,367,000 2,348,537 1,367,000 
7,518,753 4,646,048 7,518,753 
2,624,702 16,299,264 2,624, 702 

25,641,699 ====1=7,=97=2~,0=9=4==~=2=5,=64=1~,6=,9=9=·---~2,094! 

2025 
Rs. 

GI'OU[l 

16,211,087 

24,357,853 
14,690,284 

973,486 
56,232,710 

2025 
Rs. 

Group 

1,720,525 
13,719 

143,061 
77,000 

1,954,304 

2025 
Rs. 

= 

Group 

151,514,557 
(10,511) 

151,504,046 

(7,124,840) 

144,379,206 

2024 
Rs. 

10,786,308 
40,156,915 
12,865,910 

2025 
Rs. 

Company 

16,211,087 
24,357,853 
12,078,247 

973,486 

63,809,133 -~20,673 

2024 
Rs. 

1,493,841 
(64,784) 
188,648 
166,000 

1,783,706 

2024 
Rs. 

2025 
Rs. 

Company 

1,470,675 

143,061 
77,000 

1,690,736 

2025 
Rs. 

Company 

2024 
Rs. 

7,503,823 
40,156,915 
12,865,910 

60,526!.~~? ... 

2024 
Rs. 

1,397,491 
(64,784) 
16(),090 
166,000 

1,658,798 
- "'= 

2024 
Rs. 

88,406,904 144,848,576 82,395,959 

~~~--~~~~~.3~24~) ____ _ 
88,406,904 144,839,252 82,395,959 
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7. !NCOJ\IE TAX EXI'ENSE (Conttl ... ) 

7.1 Reconciliation between the accounting profit and the tax profit 

Profit Betore Tax 
Other Sources ofineome 
Aggregate dissallowable expenses 
Aggregate allowable expenses 
Pmfit from business 
Interest Income- Non Business Income 
Tr1xabl~ Income 

Manufacturing Business- Tax @18% 
Manufacturing Business- Tax @30% 
Non Business income- Interest Income @30% 
Taxable Income 

Current Tux @30% 

7.2 Deferred Tux Liabilities 

At the beginning of the year 
Provision made during the year 
At the end of the year 

7.3 The dosing defen·ed lax asset balunce relates to the following 

Accelerated depreciation for tax purpose 
Employee benefit liability 

8. EARNINGS PER SHAlU: 

Group Company 
2025 
Rs. 

2024 
Rs. 

2025 
Rs. 

2024 
Rs. 

511,124,032 272,641,700 489,804,358 252,147,282 
(79,097,942) (65,712,027) (76,485,905) (62,429,542) 
45,526,935 46,098,925 44,626,674 46,093,113 

(28,308,598) ~7;(2:-:::2"':,6-:-837"',97::4:::'5),_,,, -7:(2-:::8,~30::-:8:":,5:::c98~) (22,220,661) 
449,244,427 230,344,653 429,636,529 ~ 
55,804,095 64,345,027 53,192,058 61,062,542 

505,048,522 294,689,680 _482,828,587 _ _?74,~?3.:2!2.. 

134,773,328 
16,741,229 

151,514,557 

69,103,396 
19,303,508 
88,406,904 

128,890,959 
15,957,617 

144,848,576 

144,848,576 
144,848,576 

64,077,058 
18,318,902 
82,395,959 ' 

82,395,959 
'82,39f959 

Group Company 

2025 
R~. 

2024 
Rs. 

2025 
Rs. 

2024 
Rs. 

16,498,308 25,836,653 16,498,308 25,836,653 
(7, 124,840) (9,338,345) (7,124,840) (9,338,345) 

"""""""'9,373~ """"'""""16;,;.,4...,9=8,=3=08=- ... ==9=,3=7=3, ... 46=8= ===-=16=,4=9=8.,.3 ... 08= 

23,584,672 28,585,306 23,584,672 

(14,211 ,2 04) _..;.(1_2,;.-, 0,_8 6,_.;., 9_,9.,;8)"- _,_;,.( 1--:'4,'"""2""11,_,2;-::0-::'-4) 
9,373,468 16,498,308 9,373,468 
~ .. ·····>;;<::;:;• 

28,585,306 
(12,086,998) 
16,498,308 

8.1 Basic Earnings Per Share is calculated by dividing the Net Profit for the Year attributable to Ordinary Shareholders by the Weighted Average 
Number of Ordinary Shares outstanding during the year. 

8.2 The following ret1ects the income and share data used in the Basic Earnings Per Share computations. 

Net Profit for the Year 
Net Profit Attributable to Ordinary Shareholders for Basic Eamings Per 
Share 

Number· of OJ·diltai"Y Sltat·es used as the denominator: 

2025 
Rs. 

Group 

366,744,827 
366,744,827 

2024 
Rs. 

193.573,141 
193,573,141 

2025 
Rs. 

Company 
2024 
Rs. 

352,089,945 179,089,668 
352,089,945 ·--179,089,668 

Weighted Average Number of Ordinary Shares in issue applicable to 
B;lsic Earnmgs Per Share I,sn,soo_ ==1=,5=7=8,""sn_o ..... =-l=,s.,.7_s .... s_oo.,._ ~~.22... 

232.29 122.61 223.01 113.43 
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9. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQU1PMENT 

Company/Group 
Freehold 

Buildings 
Land 

9.1 Cost Rs. Rs. 

As at Olst April 26,370,476 234,697,234 

Additions - -
Disposals . -
As at 31 March 26,370,476 234,697,234 

9.2 Accumulated Depreciation 

As at 01st April 181,743,291 

Charge for the year - 5,862,508 

Disposals - -
As at 31 March 187,605,799 

Carrying Value :as at: 

31 March 2025 26,370,476 47,09!,434 

31 March 2024 26,370,476 52,953,942 

Plant and 
Moulds 

Machinery 

Rs. Rs. 

273,472,163 415,703,620 

632,685 500,000 

- -

274,104,848 416,203,620 

224,626,235 396,528,086 

13,843,631 7,264,875 

238,469,866 403,792,961 

35,634,982 12,410,659 

48,845,928 19,175,534 

"-<:'Xiili1i'.'¥.li' , ~~11:,,,.,, 

Office Computer Furniture Motor Road 
3Ul3.2 

Equipment Equipment and Fittings Vehicles Development 

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. 

7,093,758 10,676,91(! 5,424,076 35,454,426 680,763 1,009,57 

1~351,396 3,984,294 6,46 

- 174,50i - 17 

8,445,154 14,486,709 5,424,076 35,454,426 680,763 ],015,86 

5,770,674 9,409,357 4,415,613 35,454,426 680,763 858,62 

526,593 998,7&3 295,138 - 28,79 

- 81,43J - - 8 

6,297,267 10,326,712 4,710,751 35,454,426 680,763 887,33 

2,147,887 4,159,9>8 713,325 128,52 

1,323,084 1,267,5~3 1,008,463 150,94 

9.3 During the financial year, the Company/Group acquired property, plant and equipment to aggregate value of Rs.6,468,380 /- (2024- Rs. l0,337, i 881-). Cash payments amou 1ting to Rs.6,468,380/-
Rs.l0,337, 188/-) were made during the year for purchase of proper!:y pla.Tlt & equipment. 

--19N 
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9. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cnntd ... ) 

9.4 Assets Pledged 

The Group has mortgaged following property, plant and equipment as securities tor obtaining banking facilities fi·om Commercial Bank 
of Ceylon PLC and State Bank ofindia, Colombo Branch 

·--
Descl'iption of tltc asset 

Name of the 
Facility Security Value 

Bank {Rs.) 

Land and Building located at 328, Commercial Bank of Fund based and non-ftmd based short t01m 
86,000,000 

Madapatha Road, Batakettara CeylonPLC banking facilities- Rs 305,000,000/-r··------ ---
Pili?andala and immovable plant and State Bank ofindia, Fund based and non-fund based short tenn 

226,000,000 
eqlllpment Colombo banking facilities - Rs 190,000,000/-

-·---

10.1 During the financial year, the Company/Group acquired intangible assets to aggregate value of Rs.475,641 /- (2024- Rs. 951,049/-). 
Cash payments amounting to Rs.475,64l/- (2024- Rs. 951,049/-) were made during the year for purchase of intangible assets. 

H. ll\"'VESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES Company Company 

2025 2024 2025 2024 
Holding% Holding% Rs. Rs. 

Nilkamal Eswaran Marketing (Pvt) Ltd 
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12. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 

Group/Comp••Y 

12.1 Investment in Equity Securities 31.03.2025 

Dialog Axiata PLC 
Hemas Hokling PLC 
John Keels Holding PLC 
Teejay Lanka PLC 
Hatton National Bonk PLC 
Aitken Spence Hotel Holding PLC 
Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC 
Pc<lples Leasing and Finance PLC 
Lanka IOC PLC 
CTC 

12.2 Profit or IA>s• on Dispooalof Equity Se<uriti .. 31,03.2025 

Dialog Axiata PLC 
Dialog Axiata PLC 
John Keels Holding PLC 
Hatton National Bank PLC 
Hatton National Bank PLC 

Hatton National Bank PLC 

Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC 
Comme<cialllank of Ceylon PLC 
Peoples Leasing and Finance PLC 
Peoples Leasir.g and Finance PLC 
Aitken Spence Hotel Holding PLC 
Central Finance 
CICHokling 

Teejay Lanka PLC 

12.3 Profit or Loss on .Disposal of Equity Securities 31.03.2024 

Ceylon Grain Elevators ?LC 

Melsta Corp PLC 

13. INVENTORIES 

Raw materials 

n 

No ofsh:ans 
as at 

3!.03.2625 

Qty 

95,000 

330,000 

ll5,005 

70,000 

~ 
618,605 

No nf.sb2r.es Total Market .. ~, Value .as at 
31.03.2024 31.03.2024 

Qly Rs. 

986.123 ll,537.639 

95.000 7,638,000 

60,000 11,640,000 

280.000 l0.52S,OOO 

45.000 8,!00.000 

60,000 3,972,000 

30.000 2,931.000 

986,51! 10.&51,621 

2,542,634 67,198,260 

Cost of Custof 
Acquisition/ A.cqvisiti.onf 

Carryiag V .<tlue Cacrying 

Rs. :l.s. 

9.405.250 

6,616.191 6.616,191 

9,302.308 5477,123 

9.515.963 

7~073.875 

3,713,629 

2.366,117 1(1_873.381 

11.427,736 
5,308,0% 

l(.9ll.70S 
59,421.069 41,!86,499 

No ofsha.rz:s !hte or 
D.sposa! 

169.512 241)<:;.!024 

816.611 01 0:!.2.024 
30.000 24,Q.C.2024 

15,938 OL0o2024 
IO.OGO 260:.2024 
20,000 ()4 0~2024 

10,562 01.0::2024 

19.995 t3 Dlli2024 
736,5!1 o6 o· 2o;.s 
250,000 13 O<i2024 

60,000 15J'H2025 

50,000 15 Oi 2025 

35.000 15.04.2025 

23.000 150! 2025 

N9 of shues 
Date of 
~ispos3i 

27,50il IJ U 2023 
50,000 :n,I2.,2023 

,--<2::;,w_w.;, a;t;~r,.·, 

----··---··------

Market price as Market prk:e as Total Market Revaluation Rev 
at 31.Q3.2024 at 31.03.20:1.5 Value as at Gaini{Lo$Sj C..i 

31.1)3.2025 31J)3.2025 31. 

Rs, Rs. Rs. Rs. 

12 
so 120 11,400,0(<LOO (4.783.809 00) 

194 20 6.666,000W (1,188,877 00) 

38 
180 

66 

98 148 16,963,2:3750 (6.089.856 50) 

11 
127 3,89'i,OOO 418.096 

1.350 11,612,150 , (700.442) 

55,531.388 (12.344.888) 

Price per share Cost SP IS!tare Salef'I'Q(eeds Prot 

9 1.456,99{) 12 1,994.313 

!0 7,947,973 12 9,608,&33 

144 4.305.184 201 6~02l,i92 

12& 2,035,470 202 3,226,756 

173 ],773,571 204 2.,036,9.28 
176 3,522,033 201 4,024.812 

79 833,031 l !5 1,2ll,470 

79 1,583,634 108 2~155,045 

12 8.727,33! 12 8,933,297 
ll 2,700,405 13 3.164.160 
62 3,713JH7 S! 4)~64,896 

126 6.304.405 !84 9.230,560 
59 5,020,580 67 5.715,.264 

340 9.515.775 485 13,566.336 

Pric>e per share Cost SPlSla:re Sale ?roceeds Pro 

!41 3,8S6,16S JS1 4,916,i36 

53 1,642,946 SJ.55 4,177,680 

-------
6,529,114 9,153.816 

Gr-.uup Company 

2025 Z!l24 2025 

Rs. Rs. lls. 

103,367,9)6 i26.745~620 103,3>57,957 12 

3.8.7J,454 l;n:0:,6i5 3Pl,454 
ll,9U1,00D 26,356;+0~ 11,9-<Jl,OOO 
J,399,875 3,439,030 3,399,875 

19,636)}18 9At9,992 12,325,~65 



NOTES THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Year ended J l March 2025 

13. INVENTORIES (Contd ... ) 

13.1 Provision for slow moving Inventories 

Balance as at the beginning of the year 
Provision for the year 
Balance as at the end of the period 

13.1.2 l'&·ovision Category wise 

Raw materials 
Packing materials 
Finished goods 
Semi-finished goods 

Group 
2025 2024 
Rs. Rs. 

46,946,974 43,354,326 

(8,451,209) 3,592,648 
38,495,765 46,946,974 

Group 

2025 2024 
Rs. 

9,921,325 

362,779 

1,709,500 

26,502,160 
38,495,765 

Rs. 

18,658,281 

376,788 

24,576,671 

3,335,234 
46,946,974 

Company 

2025 2024 
Rs. Rs. 

24,444,218 20,381,893 

__ (;...;8,:....709,459) 4,062,325 
15,734,758 24,444,218-

..;:;:::~~-

Company 

2025 2024 
Rs. Rs. 

9,921,325 18,516,621 

362,779 376,788 
1,709,500 3,476,894 

3,741,155 2,073,915 
15,734,758 24,444,218 

13.2 'The group has mortgaged its stocks with assignment over Trade Debtors, to obtain banking facilities as follows 
_,........., ___ . ________ 
me of the Bank Facility 

mmercial Bank of Ceylon PLC 
Fund based and non~ fund based short term facilitle, ---!e Bank of India, Colombo Branch -

14. TRADE AND OTHER ID'.CEIV ABLE 

Trade Receivables- Related Parties (Note 14.1) 

-Other 

Less: Provision for impainnent (Note 14.2) 

Staff Loans 
Refundable Deposits 
Prepayments and advances 
Advances paid to suppliers 
VAT Receivables 

Other receivables 
NBT recoverable 

Group 

2025 2024 
Rs. R~. 

12,437,659 9,197,497 

192,662,771 172,894,383 

(4,471,596) (2,696;'i'iR) 

200,628,834 179,395,322 

4,287,713 4,766,786 

5,201,873 12,237,568 

4,088,483 4,325,298 

24,928,085 9,056,436 

10,151,787 8,856,010 

1,431,176 1,219,185 

247,460 247,460 
250,965,410 220,104,064 

Security Value 

Group Company 

Rs. Rs. 

105,000,00(1 70,000,000 

20,000,000 20,000,000 
125,000,000 90,000,000 ====-===· ; -. 

Company 

2025 2024 
Rs. Rs. 

12,437,659 8,769,025 

185,870,798 162,102,830 

(3.813,(~8) --~1?80,741) 
194,494,690 168,191,114 

4,287,713 4,766,786 

5,170,877 12,198,266 

4,056,825 4,285,145 

24,502,126 8,943,238 

1,431,176 1,219,185 

247,460 247,460 
234,190,866 199,851,193 
~ 



_!'Jilk_~_!llal Eswaran Plastics (Private) Limited 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATE::::~M--:E~N-1-,S--
y ear ended 31 March 2025 

14. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLE (Contd ... ) 

14.1 Trade Receivables- Related Parties 

Relationship 

Good Value Eswaran (Pvt) Ltd Affiliate Compan 
Eswaran Brothers Exporls (Pvt) Ltd Affiliate Compan 

Nilkamal Eswaran Marketing (Pvt) Ltd Subsidiary Compa 

Group 
2025 2024 
Rs. 

5,069,579 

278,600 

Rs. 

5,315,988 

Nilkamal Limited Parent Company~·~],089,481 ._],881,509 

14.2 Provision for Impairment 

15. 

15.l. 

IS.2 

Balance as at 01 April 
(Reversa1)/Charge for the year 
Written off during the year 
Balance as at 31 March 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Favorable Cash and Cash Equivalent Balance 
Cash at Bank 

Cash In Hand 

Investments on Units@ CAL Fixed income Fund 

Repo investments in Sri T .anka Government Treasury Bills 

Investments in Fixed Deposits 

Interest Receivable 

Favot·able Caslt aud Cash Equivalent Dul:mce 
Bank Overdraft 

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents For the Purpose of 
Statement of Cash Flows 

12,437,659 9,197,497 

Group 

2025 2024 
Rs. Rs. 

2,696,558 1,899,511 

3,323,279 803,429 

(1,548,241) --::::-::-~(6""::,3"":":82:"--) 
4,471,596 2,696,558 

Group 
2025 2024 
Rs. Rs. 

6,535,438 35,331,039 

969,991 479,522 

113,857,471 74,235,589 

386,000,000 97,000,000 

312,007,188 287,611,961 

21,558,907 18,723,300 

840,928,995 513,381,411 

(2,242,710) (3, 154, 706) 
(2,242,710) (3, 154, 706) 

838,686,286 510,226,705 

Company 

2025 2024 
Rs. 

5,069,579 

278,600 

7,089,481_ 
12,437,659 

Rs. 

5,315,988 

2,934,871 

518,166 
8,769,025 

Company 

2025 2024 
Rs. Rs. 

2,680,741 1,891,484 

2,681,267 801,451 

(1,548,241) --~(l;.;;;..2'c.;.l;_94~) 
3,813,768 2,680,741 

= 

Company 

2025 2024 
Rs. Rs. 

2,123,389 34,850,038 

905,880 469,522 

113,857,471 74,235,589 

350,000,000 65,000,000 

312,007,188 287,611,961 

21,434,907 17,912,189 

800,328,834 480,079,299,_ 

(2,242,710) 
(2,242, 710) 

798,086,125 480,079,299 



}...)ilk~ Plastics (Private) Limited 
NO'TES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Y c;tr ended 31 March 2025 

Hi. 

17. 

STATED CAPITAL 

Ordinary Shares 

RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS 

Balance as at 0! April 
Current Se1vice Cost 
Interest Cost 

Actuarial Gain!(Loss) 
Payments made during the year 
Balance as at 31 March 

17.1 The principal assumptions used are as follows: 

Prindpal assumptions used were as follows at the reporting date: 

Iii. 

Discount .Rate 
Future Salary Increment 
Retimrnent Age 
StafTTumover 

TRADE AND OTimR l'AYABLE 

Trade I'ayables- Related Parties (Note 18. 1) 
-Other 

Security Deposits from Trade Debtors 
Aecmed Expenses 
Value Added Tax Payable 
Social Secur.ity Contribution Levy Payable 
Adv>mces n-om Customers 
Other Payables 

W.1 Tmdc l'uy11blco ·· Rulutod I>nr1iei 

19. 

Eswaran Brotl1ers Ceylon (1'vt) Ltd 
Ni!kamal Limited 

RELATED PARTY l'AYAllLES 

Nilbm~1!.imitF:r1 

Affiliate Company 
Parent Company 

Relationship 

Parent Company 

Company/Group Company/Group 
2025 2024 2025 2024 

Number Number Rs. Rs. 

1,578,800 20,000,000 20,000,000. 
1,5?.,8,&oo--· 2o,ooo.g~~o .. .... 2o,ooo.ooo 

Group 
2025 2024 
Rs. Rs. 

40,289,992 31,709,612 
3,841,271 3,096,815 
7,252,198 3,383,644 
1,534,373 6,712,282 

__ (:-:::5,7547,154) (4,612,361) 
47,370,680 40,289,992 - ~--

2025 
Rs. 

Group 
2024 
Rs. 

====== .. 

Company 
2025 2024 
Rs. 

40,289,992 
3,841,271 
7,252,198 
1,534,373 

(5,547,154) 
47,370,680 

2025 

11% 
12% 

60 Years 
8% 

Rs. 

31,709,612 
3,096,815 
3,383,644 
6,712,282 

(4,612,361) 
40,289,992 

2024 

18% 
15% 

60 Years 
16% 

Compnny 
2025 
Rs. 

2024 
Rs. 

2,975 5,855,954 2,975 5,855,953 
19,319,063 35,085,758 19,256,811 34,857,586 

1,100,000 1,100,000 1,100,000 1,100,000 
27,807,895 15.486,071 25,559,905 14,575,751 
16,765,955 10,282,524 16,765,955 10,282,524 
3,004,942 2,472,883 3,004,942 2,472,883 
2,379,726 804,362 2,224,613 499,846 
5,268,593 3,6!5,814 5,268,593 3,615,814 

----;;sE9J49 =7=-4=,7=03=.3=6=6 ,==73=·=18=3=. 79=4====73=,2=6=0·=3=57= 

GroUJl Company 
2025 2024 2025 2024 
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. 

2,975 2,975 2,975 2,975 
5,852,979 5,852,978 

=============5=Jf=5=5,=9=5'=~====~=2=·~~7=5=-~~5=·~85=5=,9~53== 

2025 
lh. 

Group 

2,989,188 
~---2,989)88' 

2024 
Rs. 

2025 
Rs. 

Company 
2024 
Rs. 

2,237,286 
2,237,286 



Nilkamal Eswaran Plastics (Private) Limited 
-NOTES TO THE FINANCiAL STA·':-. T=E=::<-M-:---E-::N=T-S--------------
y eat ended 31 March :LU:l:> 

20. PROHT FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 

Group Company 
Stated after Charging /(Crediting) 2025 2024 2025 2024 

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. 

Depredation 28,791,533 35,184,851 28,791,533 35,184,851 
Audit Fees and Expenses 2,785,587 2,490,882 2,455,587 2,190,882 
Non Audit Services 334,969 430,000 334,969 350,000 
Amortisation of Intangible Assets 287,915 145,864 287,915 145,864 
(Revcrsal)/Provision for impaim1cnt of trade receivables 2,996,944 803,429 2,681,267 801,451 
(Charge)/Reversal of provision for Inventories (8,451,208) 3,592,647 (8, 709,458) 4,062,325 
Staff Costs Includes 

·- Defined Benefit Plan Costs - Gratuity 12,627,842 13,192,741 12,627,842 13,192,741 
- Defined Contribution Plan Costs - EPF and ETF 13,927,093 12,837,563 13,927,093 12,837,563 
- Salaries , wages and Other related Costs 158,413,409 l 02,664,949 158,413,409 l 02,664,949 

21. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

21.1 Capital Expenditure Commitments 

The Company does not have signil:icant Capital Exenditure commitments as at the date ofrepmting. 

21.2 Contingencies 

'I'hc Company does not have significant contingencies as at the reporting date. 

22. SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE 

There have been no material events occuning after the repmting date that require adjustments to or disclosure in the 
Financial Statements. 

23. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

1.~.1 Key Management Personnel 

Key Management Personnel (KMP) are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and 
';ontrolling the activities of the Company directly or indirectly. 

11te Company/Group has identified the Board of Directors of the Company, Board of Directors of the Parent and other 
members of the management team who hold significant authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling 
the t:ntity's activities as KMP of the Company/Group. 

23.2 Compensation of Key Management Personnel 

Short Term Benefits 

Group Company 
2025 2024 2025 2024 
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. 

18,286,589 
18,286,589 

17,524,648 18,286,589 17,524,648 
i7~524148 ~8,2"86,589-· 17,524:648 



Nilkamal Eswaran Plastics (Private) Limited 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS~···~-·-
v ear ended 31 March 2025 

23. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cond .. ) 

23.3 Transactions with Related Companies 

Company Name 

Nilkamal Eswaran 
Marketing (Pvt) Ltd 

Nilkamal Limited 

Eswaran Brothers 
Exports (Pvt) Ltd 

Eswaran Brothers 
Ceylon (Pvt) Ltd· 
Crates 

Good Value Eswaran 
(Pvf) Ltd 

Good Value Eswaran 
Worldwide (Pvt) Ltd 

Relationship 

Subsidiary Company 

Parent Company 

Affiliate Company 

Afliliate Company 

Affiliate Company 

Affiliate Company 

Natm·e of Transaction 

Net fund transfer to/(from) the Related Party 
Compar1y 

Settlement of Dues to the Related Party 
Company 

Purchases for the Related Party Company 

Dividends 
Mould lease income from the Related Party 
Company 
Mould lease rentals paid to the Related Party 
Company 
Purchase of Capital Goods fmm the Related 
Party Company 

Sale of Molds 
Royalty Payable 

Sales 

Settlements 

Sales 

Settlements 

Sales 

Settlements 

Sales 

Settlements 

Company 
2025 2024 
Rs. 

2,902,745 

(5,837,617) 

15,295,148 
89,070,100 

119,200 

11,956,563 

5,146,635 

(56,640) 

74,050 

(77,025) 

25,559,277 

Rs. 

14,684,181 

(14,684,181) 

14,942,149 
43,805,421 

1,520,344 

1,320,000 

5,076,457 
(3,071,204) 
7,852,130 

(138,000) 

23,723,858 

(25, 116,592) (23, 196,036) 

1,767,251 

(1,140,357) (138,000) 

23.4 The Company has provided a Corporate Guarantee for Rs 16nm in 21 November 2012 for banking facility made available to the 

Subsidiary Nilkamal Eswaran Marketing (Pvt) Ltd by the Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC. 



Nilkamal Eswaran Plastics (Private) Limited 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Year ended 31 March 2025 

24. CURRENT TAXATION 

Opening balance at the beginning of the year 

Self Assessment Tax Payment for 23/24 

Q4 
Final Tax 
\VHT Claimed 

Sub Total 
Self Assessment Tax Payment for 24/25 

Ql 
Q2 

Q3 

¥.-'HT Claimed 24/25 
WHT On CAL Fixed Income securities 23/24 

24/25 

Over/Under provision pertaining to last year 

Sub Total 
Current year Provision 

(411,122) 

(356,753) 

2025 2024 
Rs. Rs 

56,591,574 18,206,548 

(7,066,582) (10,000,000) 

(50,846,624) (11,130,099) 

(76,779) 

(57,989,985) (2t, J..m,099) 

(6,705,381) (5,987,960) 

(6,642,949) (14,802,638) 

(6,541,611) 

(1,137,904) (2,090,236) 

(767,875) 
(9,324) 

(21,805,043) (22,880,834) 

144,848,576 82,395,960 

121,645,1.22 56,591,575 
-=-- = = 
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Nilkamal Eswaran Limited 
DETAILED OF PROFIT OR LOSS 
Year ended 31 March 2025 

STATEMENT Company 
20Z5 2024 
Rs. Rs. 

Revenue l ,594,208,424 1,046,950,755 

Cost of Sales (848,613,233) (627,769,680) 

_.. ·--'---··----~ 

Gross Profit 745,595,190 419,181,075 

Other income 25,641,699 17,972,094 

Administrative expenses III (101,904,217) (89,359,383) 
IV 

Distribution expenses (231 ,458,252) (154,514,355) 

Profit from Operations 437,874,421 193,279,431 

Finance Income 53,620,673 60,526,648 

Finance Cost (1,690,736) (1 ,658, 798) 

Profit Before Taxation 489,804,358 252,147,282 



-~ilkamal Esy;aran Plastics (Private) Limited 
DETAILED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS 
Year ended 31 March 2025 

STATEMENT- I 

COST OF SALES 

Opening Stock 
Purchases 
Provision for Discount for Slow-moving Stock 
Manufacturing Cost (Statement II) 
Goods in Transit 
Closing Stock 

STATE.MENT- II 

MANUFACTURING COST 

A.llowancc for Extra Hours 
Annual Leave Encashment 
Attendance Allowance 
Bonus 
Budgetary Allowance 
Contract Wages 
Depreciation on Moulds 
Depreciation on Plant, Machinery and Equipment 
Electricity 
EPF 
ETF· 
f<'abricated Outside Work 
Factory Consumablcs 
Food Allowance 
Hard Shift Allowance 
How;:~ Rent Allowance 
Loading and Unloading Charges 
Meal Allowance 
Mould Lease Rent 
Ni.ght Shift Allowance- Factory 
OSS Products Exp<::nses 
Overtim.~ 

Plant & lVIachinery Maintenance 
Powder Coa1ing Chagres 
Production Incentive 

Related Expenses .. Leased Moulds 
Salaries & Wages 
Screen Printing 
Special Allowance 
Travelling Allowance 
Water Bill Expenses 
Soflt Labour 

Company 
2025 2024 
Rs. 

229,589,717 
695,593,188 

(8, 709,458) 

166,782,013 

(14,455,401) 

(220, 186,827) 

848,613,233 
~ 

Rs. 

239,914,694 

447,296,339 

4,062,325 
149,718,243 

I 6,367,796 

(229,589,717)_ 
627,769,680 
-~ "'7 

Company 
2025 2024 
Rs. Rs. 

56,000 

2,440,075 1,714,499 

1,068,883 664,400 

2,749,523 3,721,036 

883,595 1,357,250 

28,722,426 14,177,350 

7,264,841 14,043,788 

13,843,684 13,701,637 

40,403,193 43,406,419 

3,827,291 3,582,616 

956,825 895,654 
3,000 

2,561,847 1,781,777 

102,800 

176,000 159,000 

40,000 

105,010 136,100 

5,565 15,525 

1,320,000 

19,530 129,917 

586,681 317,258 

13,127,723 9,380,892 

10,419,987 7,175,289 

3,763,044 2,430,907 

1,053,422 687,157 

137,601 455,549 

22,555,523 20,572,245 

314,977 403,733 

1,625,661 1,468,614 

5,085,493 4,154,614 

1,348,039 873,343 

1,735,575 789,875 

---r66,782,0 13 149,718,243 
•=w= 



Nilkamal Eswaran Plastics (Private) Limited 
DETAILED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS 
Year ended 31 March 2025 

STATEMENT- Ill 

ADMINISTRATION COSTS 

Accommodation 

Annual Leave Encashment 

EPF 12% 

ETF3% 

Food Allowance 

Bonus 

Gratuity 
House Rent 

Salaries 
Special Allowance 

Budgetary Allowance 
Vehicle Hiring 

Overtime 
Traveling Allowance 

Travelling expense 

Fuel Expenses 

Seminar &. Training 
Staff Recrui trnent 

Vehicle Maintenance 

Andit Fees 
Audit Fees- Internal 
Books & Periodicals 
Building Maintenance 

Charity &. Donations 

Computer Consumables 
Container Washing&. Cleaning Charges 

Depreciation on Other Fixed Assets 

lnsura11ce Expenses 

License Fee 
Medical Expenses 
Ot11ce Maintenance 

Payroll Outsourcing Fee 
Postage, Stamp &. Courier 

Printing & Stationery 
Rates & 'faxes 
Secretarial Fees 

Security Expenses 

Staff Welfare 

Stamp Duty 
Tab &. Phone Repair 
Telephone & Fax 

Miscellaneous Expenses 

Company 

2025 2024 
Rs. Rs. 

1,340,041 737,331 
1,152,340 1,321,949 

2,090,876 2,136,549 
522,737 530,079 

137,300 
1,192,395 1,013,599 

12,627,842 13,192,742 
59,000 

10,755,664 10,653,300 
2,448,456 2,175,709 

49,000 302,615 

1,022,400 1,021,670 

83,508 76,148 

3,169,835 3,010,845 

2,050,299 1,569,721 

2,984,908 2,523,058 

19,000 132,554 

109,720 184,024 

5,969,907 2,700,640 

1,955,556 2,190,882 

835,000 830,333 
98,300 67,380 

1,853,174 1,411,294 

145,050 145,300 

635,300 302,090 

47,180 86,739 

7,970,923 7,584,779 

6,790,324 6,386,196 

213,576 227,673 

254,184 170,875 
17,479,913 12,099,628 

208,339 67,758 

106,289 408,258 

400,675 188,255 

2,435,454 2,435,454 

328,144 217,337 

6,431,033 5,990,124 

4,396,426 3,212,097 

99,950 56,750 

200,931 174,162 

1,417,829 1,627,182 

11,740 

,~ 

101,904,217 
. _.,.,., 



DETAILED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS 
Year ended 31 March 2025 

STATEMENT· IV Company 
2025 2024 

DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES Rs. Rs. 

Advertising Expenses 23,320 54,700 

Annual Leave Encashment 3,960,701 2,868,030 

Bad Debts 2,681,267 801,451 

Budgetary Allowance 819,756 l ,328,813 

Bonus 2,791,608 2,324,193 

Daraz Sales Commission 157,932 90,516 

Distdbutor Sales Incentives 9,103,235 2,921,836 

EPF 5,227,506 4,550,886 

ETF 1,301,858 1,141,780 

Export Charges 134,742 

Fields Sales Expenses 6,173,912 5,491,297 

Food Allowance 215,135 

Fuel Expenses 5,489,985 6,209,436 

!louse Rent Allowance 13,000 

House Rent- Sales 42,400 

Online Courier Chagres 491,313 4,236 

Online Sales Commission 751 (11,615) 

Overtime 367,453 170,213 

Promotions & Events 7,159,671 4,296,587 

Purchase of Samples 227,045 48,437 

Review 1\1eeting Expense 461,969 303,386 

Royalty 11,956,563 7,852,130 

Salaries 26,675,219 23,843,784 

Sales Incentives 34,427,715 11,165,533 

Settlement Discounts 17,521,265 12,115,078 

Social Security Contribution Levy 33,911,038 22,272,052 

Special Allowance 5,453,796 4,954,788 

Tender Expenses 653,440 590,781 

Transport Charges 44,686,702 30,110,589 

Traveling Allowance 9,577,542 4,617,335 

Traveling for sales 
3,957,522 

VAT on Sample Jssues 
4,227 

Written Off Unclaimed VAT 155,686 31,079 

231,458,252 154,514,355 
=···m:::::i;;;:ts:;:..:·:,;;:,.,_~ 


